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Financial Highlights
MBERE

Revenue increased by approximately 1.6% to approximately
RMB941.6 million in FY2016 (FY2015: approximately RMB926.5
million)

Gross profit increased by approximately 23.0% to approximately
RMB270.6 million in FY2016 (FY2015: approximately RMB219.9
million)

Profit for the year decreased by approximately 2.9% to
approximately RMB80.7 million in FY2016 (FY2015: approximately
RMB83.1 million)

Profit before tax excluding the one-off listing expenses in FY2016
and FY2015 and the gain on disposal of a subsidiary recorded
in FY2015 increased by approximately 41.8% to approximately
RMB134.7 million in FY2016 (FY2015: approximately RMB95.0
million)

Basic earnings per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”)
decreased by approximately 2.9% to approximately RMB10.76
cents in FY2016 (FY2015: approximately RMB11.08 cents)

The board of directors (the “Board”) proposed to declare final
dividend of HK1.8 cents per Share (FY2015: Nil) and a special
dividend of HK8.7 cents per Share (FY2015: Nil) for the year ended
31 December 2016
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the annual report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016 (“FY2016” or the “Reporting Period”) to the shareholders (the
“Shareholders”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For FY2016, the Group focused on promoting its branded sofas,
continuing development of new products and enhancing its production
and operation efficiencies, which thereby increased the Group’s
competitiveness in sofa export industry.

The Group further advanced its position in the overseas markets by
enhancing sales and marketing of sofas under our brand “Morris
Holdings Limited” through innovative designs and improvement of
customer services. Benefit from recovery of the economy in the United
States of America (“U.S.”), appreciation of U.S. dollars and drop
of major raw materials cost and sub-contracting fees, a favourable
growth in the gross profit was recorded for FY2016. The gross profit
in FY2016 increased by approximately 23.0% as compared to the
financial year ended 31 December 2015 (“FY2015”). The profit before
tax excluding the one-off listing expenses in FY2016 and FY2015 and
the gain on disposal of a subsidiary recorded in FY2015 increased by
approximately 41.8% as compared to FY2015.

The Group is steadily developing retail business in the market of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). As at 31 December 2016, all of
its direct sales stores are located in the Zhejiang Province, which are
in proximity to its production facilities in the PRC. Since the Group is
prudently conducting its development in retail business in the domestic
market, the proportion of earnings from such business was relatively
low for FY2016.

The Group persists in controlling costs and expenditures of its
manufacturing operations in order to increase operation efficiency and
reduce production cost. The cost of sales of the Group decreased by
approximately 5.0% from approximately RMB706.6 million in FY2015
to approximately RMB671.1 million in FY2016.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

PROSPECT

In the coming year, with the recovery of the economies of the U.S.
and other overseas markets, the Group intends to enhance the
competitiveness of its own brand, “Morris Holdings Limited”, by
continuously developing new products, increasing promotion of the
brand and improving its services. Furthermore, the Group plans to
establish a new company in the U.S. which will be fully dedicated to
market research, product marketing, brand building and after-sales
service in the U.S. market. Besides, the Group plans to rent a
warehouse with a floor space of approximately 10,000 square meters
in the U.S. to promote sales of original brand manufacturing (“OBM”)
products to E-commerce customers and facilitate post-sales services.
The Group aims to continue to increase its market share in the U.S. by
strengthening existing business relationships with its customers and
exploring new business relationships to expand its customer base. In
addition, the Group also intends to engage sales representatives who
will be fully dedicated to developing the Group’s business in Australia
and Europe.

In order to increase the Group’s production capacity, it will accelerate
the setting up of its production site in Cambodia, with an aim to
commence operations in the first half of 2017. Simultaneously, the
Group is also undergoing optimisation of its existing production lines
to increase production capacity. In addition, a new PRC production
facility with an estimated production capacity of 210,000 pieces of
sofas per year was set up and started trial production in March 2017.
The Group is planning to set up two more production facilities in the
PRC in the long run to facilitate its future growth.

In addition, the Group maintains a positive outlook on the PRC
sofa market and its growing potential, and it intends to establish
“MorriSofa” as a new brand of smart features sofas in the PRC and
Hong Kong. It will make use of its experience in the retail market, and
allocate more resources to set up retail stores, e-commerce platforms
and sales and marketing centers of “MorriSofa” in Shanghai and
Hong Kong, targeting middle class consumers. The Group is aiming
to develop the PRC and Hong Kong retail markets by offering “high
value for money” products, and strives to become an industry leader
in smart features sofa in the next three to five years.

Zou Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Zhejiang, 28 March 2017
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Relationship
with other
director(s) of the
Company
Date of (the “Director(s)”)
joining the Present position/title Roles and Date of and senior
Name Age Group in the Company Responsibilities appointment management
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Zou Gebing 40 1 May 2002 Executive Director, chairman  Overseeing the Group’s growth strategy 18 March 2016 Nil
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Chen Guohua 41 1 April 2012 Executive Director and Overseeing strategic development, 18 March 2016 Nil
BREE 201244 A1H executive vice president investment planning and the daily 201653A18H &
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ﬁ*%EIMWE RERER
Zeng Jin 43 2 December 2004 Executive Director, senior Overseeing production planning 18 March 2016 Nil
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Wang Ming 4 25 June 2008 Executive Director, vice Managing and reviewing import and 18 March 2016 Nil
T 2008564250 president, head of import export contracts and overseas 201653A18H &
and export and head of trading documents, arranging for
sales and marketing the transportation, clearance and
H78%  B@H ELOT  inspection of cargos, coordinating
ENRBEERTSEE with the Group's finance department
to arrange for payment and tax
refund, developing new markets and
clientele and maintaining customers’
relationship
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 40, is the chairman and CEO of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing and mapping the Group’s growth strategy
and overall management.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was deputy
general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July 1997 to
March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002, respectively, and had
been mainly responsible for exploration and development of overseas
markets of sofas and other furniture. He joined Morris Group Co., Ltd.
(“Morris PRC”) as part of its management team in May 2002, served
as its vice chairman and general manager since February 2005, and
became the chairman of Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a
master’s degree in business administration for senior management
from Zhejiang University in the PRC in March 2007. He had also
served as a corporate tutor for MBA postgraduates in the Management
School of Zhejiang University from April 2007 to March 2012. Mr.
Zou was accredited as a senior economist by the Senior Economist
Qualification Committee of Zhejiang Province in December 2007 .

With over 15 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing related
businesses.

Mr. Chen Guohua, aged 41, is the executive vice president of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016.
Mr. Chen is responsible for strategic development, investment planning
and the daily management of the Group.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

He had served in several governmental sectors in Haining. From
February 2000 to July 2003, he had served in the People’s Government
of Haining as a section member of the General Office, a deputy section
leader of the Education and Health Section and a deputy section
leader of the Social Affairs Section. From August 2003 to April 2008,
he had then served as the section leader of the Information Technology
Research Section of the General Office of the People’s Government
of Haining. From April 2008 to March 2012, he had served as the
deputy director of the management committee of Jianshan New
District of Haining and the deputy mayor of the People’s Government
of Huangwan Town in Haining. In April 2012, he was employed by
Morris PRC as its vice president, and he was then appointed as an
executive vice president of Morris PRC in November 2012. He was
employed by the Group as the executive vice president immediately
after completion of the business transfer in December 2015.

He has gained experience in the furniture industry during his
employment with Morris PRC and the Group. He graduated from
East China University of Science and Technology in administrative
management in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997.

Mr. Zeng Jin, aged 43, is the senior vice president and head of
production and quality management of the Group and was appointed
as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is responsible
for overseeing production planning and manufacturing and quality
management the Group. He has extensive experience in production
and quality management.

Prior to joining the Group, he had worked as a technician in Shanghai
Hongdun Anti-Counterfeit Material Co., Ltd. from August 1997 to
May 1998. He had then worked at Uniplas (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
May 1998 to September 2000. He then subsequently worked as a
quality engineer at Krone Communications (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
September 2000 to November 2001. He had then been employed as a
plant manager assistant and manager in the engineering department of
Shanghai Trayton Furniture Co., Ltd. from November 2001 to January
2005. He then joined Morris PRC and was appointed as a general
manager assistant in January 2005 and then as a deputy general
manager in November 2011. He was then employed by the Group
as a senior vice president and the head of production and quality
management immediately after completion of the business transfer in
December 2015.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Zeng obtained his double bachelor’s degrees in polymer science
and computer software from East China University of Science and
Technology in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997 and a master of Business
Administration Degree from Donghua University in Shanghai, PRC in
June 2008.

Mr. Wang Ming, aged 41, is vice president, head of import and export
and head of sales and marketing of the Group, and was appointed as
an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is primarily responsible
for managing and reviewing import and export contracts and overseas
trading documents, arranging for transportation, clearance and
inspection of cargos and coordinating with the Group’s finance
department to arrange for payment and tax refund, developing new
markets and clientele and maintaining customers’ relationship.

Before joining the Group, he joined Morris PRC in June 2008 as a
foreign trade clerk and was appointed as a manager in the foreign
trade marketing department (second section) of Morris PRC in
February 2013. He then became a manager of the foreign trade, import
and export department of Morris PRC in December 2013 and was
further appointed as vice president of Morris PRC in January 2015.
He was employed by the Group as a vice president and the head
of import and export immediately after completion of the business
transfer in December 2015.

He obtained his bachelor’s degree in English from Huaibei Coal
Industry Teachers College (now known as Huaibei Normal University)
in the PRC in July 2000 and a master’s degree in legal theories from
Shanghai Normal University in the PRC in June 2008.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS
Name Age
®E FR

Date of
joining the
Group

MAFREEH B H

Present position/title
in the Company

ERDNRWRERE /B

BYFHTES

Date of
appointment

Roles and
Responsibilities

AEREE BZERY

Relationship
with other
Directors
and senior
management
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BRERE
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Zhang Bingbing 57
Fikik

Huang Wenli 35
BN

Shao Shaomin 52
Gl

Ms. Zhang Bingbing, aged 57, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2016 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board. She
is also the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and a member of each of the audit committee (the

10 December 2016
2016F12 8108

10 December 2016
2016F12 8108

10 December 2016
2016F12A108

Independent Non-executive

Director

BUNFRITES

Independent Non-executive

Director

BUFNOES

Independent Non-executive

Director

BUNRITES

Supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board 201612108
EELNEZS ([E%g]) Rt
B

Supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board 201612 310H
EERmESQRMB LA

Supervising and providing
independent judgment to the Board 2016 12310H
EERmEZSRIBL A

“Audit Committee”) and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration

Committee”) of the Company.

10 December 2016 Ni
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Prior to joining the Group, she was the vice council chairman and
secretary-general of China National Furniture Association. Ms. Zhang
had also been an independent Director in Yihua Lifestyle Technology
Co. Ltd (formerly known as Guangdong Yihua Timber Industry Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 600978) from August 2007 to April 2014 and
Xilinmen Furniture Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603008) from September
2009 to September 2015 both of which are listed on the Shanghai
stock exchange.

Ms. Zhang graduated in electronics from Beijing Broadcasting and
Television University in Beijing, PRC in June 1982. Ms. Zhang received
independent Director trainings in Shanghai National Accounting
Institute in the PRC in September 2008.

Mr. Huang Wenli, aged 35, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2016 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board. He
is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Huang was appointed as a researcher at the China University
of Finance and Economics in June 2016. Mr. Huang received his
doctorate in Mathematics from Zhejiang University in June 2011 and
became a postdoctoral researcher at the China University of Science
and Technology in Anhui Province in December 2011. During the
period, Mr. Huang received the second prize of China Postdoctoral
Science Fund. From August 2013 to September 2015, Mr. Huang is
a visiting scholar at the Columbia Business School.

Based on his education background and research experience, Mr.

Huang possesses the requisite knowledge relating to finance, risk
control and China economy.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Shao Shaomin, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2016 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board. He
is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees of the Company.

Mr. Shao acted as a deputy county chief of Deging County of Zhejiang
Province, a deputy chief of the Issuance and Listing Department of
Zhejiang Securities and Futures Management Office and the head
of the Listed Company Supervision Department and Inspection
Department of Zhejiang Supervision Bureau of China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

Mr. Shao graduated from Zhejiang University in the PRC with a doctoral
degree in Economics in June 2004. Mr. Shao received independent
director training in Shanghai National Accounting Institute in the PRC in
December 2008. Mr. Shao was designated as a senior accountant by
the Senior Accounting Professional Assessment Committee of Zhejiang
Province in December 1998 and was admitted as a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
December 2009. Mr. Shao was also appointed as an accredited
arbitrator in Hangzhou Arbitration Commission in June 2013.

Mr. Shao’s positions in other companies includes (i) president in
Hangzhou Pinghai Investment Co., Ltd.; (i) Vice president and director
in Cosmos Group Co., Ltd.; and (iii) independent director in Yinlun Co.,
Ltd., Zhejiang China Light & Textile Industrial City Group Co., Ltd. and
Hangzhou Gaoxin Rubber & Plastic Materials Co., Ltd.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Relationship
with other
Date of Present Directors
joining the position/title Roles and Date of and senior
Name Age  Group in the Company Responsibilities appointment management
EHMEER
MAXEE ERQRHBRE BREEREN
#E R HEH By /B ABRBE EZEAH BiE
Peng Yuling 53 16 February Chief financial Managing the financial 31 December 2015 Nil
TIR 2012 officer operations and accounting 2015%12A31H i
201223160 EHEHKE functions of the Group
TERKENTHLEER
I
Shen Jiangping 43 2 October 2001 Director of human  Overseeing recruitment, staff 31 December 2015 Nil
A 200110724 resources training, reward management 2015412 A31H &
ANEREEE and human resources matters
of the Group
EEAEEmMAE B
REERRANERER
Xu Jing 31 11 May 2015 Head of capital Overseeing matters relating to 12 December 2016 Nil
he 2015F5A11H market investor relations, fund raising 201612 A12H i
BAMSEE and capital market activities

of the Group
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Peng Yuling, aged 53, was appointed as the chief financial officer
of the Group on 31 December 2015. She is responsible for managing
the financial operations and accounting functions of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Peng served as a finance manager, a deputy
general manager and a director at Haining Jisheng Textile Co., Ltd.
from February 1994 to November 2001. Ms. Peng then subsequently
served as a deputy finance manager and a director at Zhejiang Jianshi
Industry Co., Ltd. and a deputy general manager and a director at
Haining Jishun Garments Co., Ltd., from December 2001 to December
2005 and from December 2006 to January 2012, respectively. Ms.
Peng joined Morris PRC as the chief financial officer in February
2012 and was employed by the Group as the chief financial officer
immediately after completion of the business transfer in December
2015. Ms. Peng graduated from the Party School of the Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China in the PRC in the study of
Economic Management in December 2000. She was accredited as a
senior accountant by the Assessment Committee of Senior Accountant
Qualification of Zhejiang Province in December 2003.

Ms. Shen Jiangping, aged 43, was appointed as the director
of human resources of the Group on 31 December 2015. She
is responsible for overseeing recruitment, staff training, reward
management and human resources matters of the Group. Ms.
Shen joined Morris PRC in October 2001 and worked at the human
resources department of Morris PRC. Ms. Shen was then promoted to
deputy manager and manager in the human resources department of
Morris PRC in April 2002 and December 2011, respectively. Ms. Shen
was subsequently appointed as manager in the finance department of
Morris PRC in June 2014. Ms. Shen was employed by the Group as
the director of human resources immediately after completion of the
business transfer in December 2015. Ms. Shen completed a three year
program in accounting at the School of Distance Learning of Zhejiang
University in the PRC in June 2007. Ms. Shen was accredited as a
first level corporate human resources professional by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC in December 2010.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFHESREEEERE

Mr. Xu Jing, aged 31, was appointed as the head of capital market
of the Group on 12 December 2016 and is mainly responsible for
investor relations, fund raising and capital market activities of the
Group. Mr. Xu joined our Group on 11 May 2015 as vice president and
head of financing of Mstar International Trading (HK) Limited. Mr. Xu
has over seven years of experience in corporate finance, investment
banking and private equity. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu was the
investment manager at SEAVI Advent Ocean Private Equity Limited
from September 2013 to May 2015. From July 2010 to September
2013, Mr. Xu was an associate at CCB International Capital Limited
involving in corporate finance services. From October 2009 to July
2010, Mr. Xu served in Deloitte and Touche Financial Advisory Services
Limited as an associate. Mr. Xu obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree with a major in Financial Services and a minor
in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009.
He is also a member of the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Benefiting from the Group’s continual efforts in product innovation,
productivity improvement and brand promotion, the Group has
achieved favorable results in FY2016. The Group’s revenue increased
from approximately RMB926.5 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB941.6 million in FY2016, representing an increase of approximately
1.6%. The profit for the year decreased by approximately 2.9%
from approximately RMB83.1 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMBB80.7 million in FY2016. If excluding the one-off listing expenses
incurred in FY2016 and FY2015 and the gain on disposal of a
subsidiary recorded in FY2015, the profit before tax would increase by
approximately 41.8% from approximately RMB95.0 million in FY2015
to approximately RMB134.7 million in FY2016.

During FY2016, the Group focused on promoting its own brands,
continuing development of new products and enhancing its production
and operation efficiency, which thereby increases the Group’s
competitiveness in the sofa export industry.

The products of the Group are generally marketed under two brands,
“Morris Holdings Limited” and “Morris Zou”. The Group has been
promoting the brands through the Group’s direct sale stores in
Zhejiang Province of the PRC as well as through “High Point Market”
exhibitions in High Point, North Carolina, the U.S..

The Group has participated in a variety of marketing and promotion
activities during FY2016, including participation in trade exhibitions
and media marketing campaigns, and expansion of its sales team, to
enhance its brand recognition and increase customers’ awareness.

BERBNWR TN

E e

BECERAY  NELENRREREEFIEH
FEL S AEER2016FEESRIFELSE - &
SEWAB2015FEMHL ARKEI26.5F & LI
ME2016FEMHARMIMMI6BEET  FFEA
#91.6% ° F A% A FH20154F [Z HY 49 A R #83.1
BETTEE2.9%E2016F E MK ARES0.7
BB WA BER2016%F E K2015F B EE
B — XM ETRS M20156FEEHEHE —KWE
NEME - BRIRAIEFEH2015FEMHAR
¥595.0 8 B L IN4941.8% E2016F EHHAR

e —

W34 7TEHETT °

R20164E » AEERBHENEmBIF - £E
RS SRR E IR MR IR AT B A G ke H HE
B MR AEERDELOTENG RN

NE B/ EMm— MK E T LA [Morris Holdings
Limited] & [Morris Zou] MEFREEE - AEE
FERPEMNIEMNEZERERILRERNMNE
SHFRERBEEZSRME

AEER2016F 28T — R 510 & 88 & ER
B UERNERNMERATEREFRAE © %
EEPERREHRS  BRLHEH LEARM
HY §H E K o



Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB926.5
million in FY2015 to approximately RMB941.6 million in FY2016,
representing an increase of approximately 1.6%. The profit for the year
decreased by approximately 2.9% from approximately RMB83.1 million
in FY2015 to approximately RMB80.7 million in FY2016. If excluding
the one-off listing expenses incurred in FY2016 and FY2015 and the
gain on disposal of a subsidiary recorded in FY2015, the profit for
the year would increase by approximately 41.8% from approximately
RMB95.0 million for in FY2015 to approximately RMB134.7 million in
FY2016. The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share was
RMB10.76 cents (FY2015: RMB11.08 cents) based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
of RMB80,676,000 (FY2015: RMB83,068,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 750,000,000 Shares (FY2015:
750,000,000 Shares) in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares represents the 100 ordinary shares of
the Company as at 1 January 2015, 99,900 ordinary shares of the
Company issued under the Share Split (as defined in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements) and 749,900,000 ordinary shares of
the Company issued under the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in note
39 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), as if these additional
shares issued under the Share Split and the Capitalisation Issue had
been in issue throughout the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2016.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 1.6%, from
approximately RMB926.5 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB941.6 million in FY2016,which was primarily attributable to the
depreciation of Renminbi (‘RMB”) against U.S. dollar. Sofas continued
to contribute as the major segment of sales, which was in line with
the Group’s strategy in developing its OBM business model. The
Group started to change its business model from original equipment
manufacturing business model to OBM business model and has been
increasing its focus on promoting the Group’s own brand in the market
during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 5.0%
from approximately RMB706.6 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB671.1 million in FY2016, which was primarily due to the decrease
in unit cost of some of the major raw materials and the decrease in
sub-contracting fees.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 23.0%
from approximately RMB219.9 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB270.6 million in FY2016, which was primarily due to (i) the
decrease in unit cost of some of the major raw materials and the
decrease in sub-contracting fee; (i) the depreciation of RMB against
U.S. dollar since the Group’s products are mainly denominated in
U.S. dollar while its raw materials are mainly settled in RMB; and (iii)
the change of the business model to OBM. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 23.7% in FY2015 to approximately
28.7% in FY2016.

Other income and gains

The other income and gains of the Group decreased by approximately
53.0% from approximately RMB35.0 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB16.4 million in FY2016. Such decrease was primarily due to a
one-off gain of approximately RMB11.3 million from disposal of Haining
Mengnu Leather Products Co., Ltd. recorded in FY2015.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 2.7% from approximately RMB79.9 million in FY2015
to approximately RMB82.0 million in FY2016. Such increase was
primarily due to the increase in marketing and promotion expenses. In
particular, there was an increase in exhibition fees due to an increase
in exhibition area rented at the High Point Market held in High Point,
North Carolina in the U.S., one of the largest home furnishings industry
trade shows in the world.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR EC R

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
51.3% from approximately RMB51.1 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB77.3 million in FY2016, which was primarily due to the listing
expenses of approximately RMB22.6 million incurred in FY2016, as
compared to the listing expenses of approximately RMB3.2 million
incurred in FY2015.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased from approximately
RMB18.4 million in FY2015 to approximately RMB14.3 million in
FY2016 primarily due to a lower average interest rate of bank
borrowings in FY2016 as compared to FY2015.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group increased by approximately
56.1% from approximately RMB20.1 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB31.4 million in FY2016. In addition, the effective tax rate increased
from approximately 19.5% in FY2015 to approximately 28.0% in
FY2016. The substantial increase in both income tax expense and
effective tax rate in FY2016 was mainly attributable to (i) the impact
of non deductible expenses for tax of approximately RMB6.5 million
which was mainly due to the listing expenses incurred in FY2016;
(i) a decrease in the impact of tax losses utilised from previous
years by approximately RMB10.3 million; and partially offset by the
impact of a super-deduction of eligible research and development
expenditure of approximately RMB3.2 million in FY2016 arising from
the manufacturing costs incurred by the Group that qualified for an
additional 50% tax deduction for PRC corporate income tax purpose
in accordance with the Circular on Improving the Policy on Extra
Pretax Deduction of Research and Development Expenses which was
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of
Taxation and the Ministry of Science and Technology of the PRC on
2 November 2015 and with effect from 1 January 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the profit for the year decreased by
approximately 2.9% from approximately RMB83.1 million in FY2015
to approximately RMB80.7 million in FY2016. If excluding the one-off
listing expenses incurred in FY2016 and FY2015 and the gain on
disposal of a subsidiary recorded in FY2015, the profit before tax
would increase by approximately 41.8% from approximately RMB95.0
million in FY2015 to approximately RMB134.7 million in FY2016.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working Capital

For FY2016, cash and cash equivalents of the Group increased by
approximately RMB40.5 million, which was comprised of the net cash
flows used in operating activities of approximately RMB16.4 million,
net cash flows used in investing activities of approximately RMB4.1
million, and net cash flows generated from financing activities of
approximately RMB59.5 million, while approximately RMB1.5 million
was the net effect of foreign exchange rate changes.

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest-bearing bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB277.2 million, all of which
were repayable within twelve months from 31 December 2016. The
bank loans’ interest rates ranged between 1.4% to 7.4% per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, approximately RMB220.8 million restricted
bank balances were pledged for bank borrowings and bills payables.

Gearing ratio

The net gearing ratio of the Group, which is total interest-bearing bank
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity
as at the end of the year and multiplied by 100%, decreased from
approximately 219.8% as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
128.2% as at 31 December 2016, which was primarily due to a greater
proportional increase in our total equity than in interest-bearing bank
borrowings during FY2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016.

Trade and bills receivables

The trade and bills receivables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB220.0 million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB283.8 million), primarily due to decrease in the
discounting of less low credit rating bills which could not satisfy the
derecognition criteria of the relevant accounting standard, to obtain
financing from banks.

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB542.7 million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:
approximately RMB476.5 million). Average trade payables turnover
days during FY2016 was approximately 159.9 days which was
comparable to FY2015 of approximately 159.5 days.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Quality and dedicated staff are indispensable assets to the Group’s
success in the competitive market. By providing comprehensive training
and corporate culture education periodically, the employees are able
to obtain on-going training and development in the sofa and furniture
manufacturing industry. Furthermore, the Group offers competitive
remuneration packages commensurate with industry practice and
provides various fringe benefits to all employees. The Group reviews
its human resources and remuneration policies periodically to ensure
they are in line with market practice and regulatory requirements. As at
31 December 2016, the Group employed a work force of 1,996. The
total salaries and related costs excluding the directors’ remuneration
for FY2016 amounted to approximately RMB139.5 million (FY2015:
approximately RMB110.4 million).
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERBRREIEERE

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified by
the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK
Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
so as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable)
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2016 maintained
at a satisfactory level. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no
significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from U.S. while the Group’s
production mainly operates in PRC. Accordingly, its revenue is
received in U.S. dollar while transactions arising from its operations
were generally settled in RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value
of U.S. dollars against RMB could adversely affect the operations
of the Group. During FY2016, the Group did not experience any
material difficulties or impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result
of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes
during FY2016 and there was no hedging instruments outstanding
as at 31 December 2016. The Group will continue to monitor closely
the exchange rate risk arising from its existing operations and new
investments in the future. The Group will further implement the
necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign
exchange risk when and if appropriate.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taken into
account the customer’s payment history and current ability to pay, any
information specific to the customer and the economic environment
in which the customer operates. The credit period is generally one to
two months, extending up to two to three months for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. Impairment
losses are recorded for those overdue balances where there is
objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables
due from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted for
approximately 79.0% and 72.0% of the Group’s total trade receivables
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 respectively. The credit risk
exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will continue to
be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group monitors the
interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the portfolio
of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on
the U.S. economy. The Group’s profitability and business growth
are affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political instability.
Moreover, Donald Trump, elected President in November 2016, has
changed the U.S. trade policies with China, which could bring adverse
impact to the business of the Group.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade
policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.

TERRREAAEERE

FERR

AEENEERREIEZERFANE HEKER - N
KEBFEMBEETFPNEERR  EEFE
AREPHNRELMEREELN  BEPR
HREMERLBEREABNEMNEN - EEM—
ReE—EMER I2EFPHNEEHLRERZS
ME=EA  -BUEFRERSEERSE - A%
BE N BARER EREEREGE - AlEHRA
BAEEREE R - WERBENTEER
TR FE B S RR RO SR B R K -

REFEEBRKERAATRFPNEZRIWERRZEF
B ZEE 5 EWERN2016F12A318 K&
201512 AT1A D R A h A K B E 5 U IR
HBEEMT9.0%M72.0% » NEE B LW KiFE e
RENE SERESRESHNEERR -

FEEB

AEEHENEEHHESRITERELZER
MERER - AEEFELERMNERAR  TEBR
R AR RITERRMERNES -

EE T IH N EE

HRANEENRBOBAKBERE  WELEE
BRI BURN ZBE R - AEE/EF
BEN R EFIER X RBEBEA N A N HEE LA K
EETHRANKER EMBUAMRATE

R PEMBEERT  AE - BB OWEHN
TR RBUETIBEIEZEEPRE - 1LIh - 72016
FIIABEARNES FALENR T EHHE
BHOBEK GEr e REENEBERTZE
2 .

AEECHEXEHELDIRREEFELNER
R\ - 0GR RS TE TR )5 A A SR fF | 1tk 5| R Y

ZERR o



Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERBRREIEERE

Economic environment of Cambodia

The factory of Cambodia is planned to operate in 2017. The economic
risk and political risk of Cambodia is set out in the sections headed
“Cambodia: Macro-political and economic outlook” on page 27 of this
annual report.

OPERATIONAL RISK
Raw materials

Changes in raw materials costs may adversely affect the future results
of the Company. The Company aims to maintain long-terms business
relationships with suppliers to acquire raw material.

Availability, recruitment and retention of skilled
personnel

The Group’s success and ability to grow depends largely on its
ability to attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified
managerial, sales, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical
personnel. The loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional
qualified personnel, could materially and adversely affect the Group’s
prospects and results of operations. The Group constantly reviews
its human resources strategy to ensure that its human resources
policies, processes and practices are able to facilitate its organization
development.

The Group is committed to its risk management system in order to
identify and assess risks of major projects and key business areas
at all levels. With risk reports highlighting weaknesses and potential
risks, the Group reviews and implements its risk management and
control measures to control and manage the risks which the Group
is exposed to.
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Cambodia: Macro-political and Economic Outlook
R ABEURNRERE

This section headed “Cambodia: Marco-political and Economic
QOutlook” is written by an independent consulting firm — Eurasia Group
and is based on the opinions of Eurasia Group analysts and various
in-country specialists. Eurasia Group is a private political risk research
and consulting firm that no affiliations with any government bodies.

DOMESTIC AND EXTERNAL POLITICAL
ENVIRONMENT

The political situation is tense and is expected to deteriorate further
ahead of general elections in 2018, though it is unlikely to lead to mass
violence. Prime Minister Hun Sen has been ratcheting up pressure
on the political opposition, independent and foreign media, and non-
governmental organizations.

Despite the threat of international sanctions and mass protests,
Eurasia Group predicts that if Hun Sen believes he is in danger of
losing the 2018 elections, he will dissolve his major opposition, the
Cambodia National Rescue Party (“CNRP”).
place the necessary legal framework to do so. In the meantime, he

He is now putting in

will continue to harass the opposition to prevent the CNRP leadership
from campaigning effectively.

In the less likely event that Hun Sen is forced to dissolve the
CNRP, if could trigger significant economic repercussions, most likely
sanctions from the European Union (“EU”), Cambodia’s largest export
market (primarily for garments). It is also likely to lead to widespread
demonstrations and violent clampdowns that would heighten political
risk for foreign investors and cause them to relocate manufacturing
operations to elsewhere in the region.
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Cambodia: Macro-political and Economic Outlook

RIFE | RBBUANMEER

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND BUSINESS
ENVIRONMENT

Cambodia’s economy will likely continue on a relatively high growth
trajectory. The World Bank forecasts 6.9% GDP growth in 2017 and
2018, underpinned by election-year fiscal expansion and consistently
strong garment sector exports bolstered by regional integration.
This growth forecast assumes a relative stable business operating
environment, though Eurasia Group notes that political risks will
increase in the next two years. Specifically, Cambodia will face a
higher risk of strikes and sporadic street-level violence associated
with the 2017 commune council elections and 2018 general elections.
These disruptions could increase the cost of doing business by forcing
factory shutdowns and temporary stoppages of work, or by inflicting
property damage.

CORRUPTION

Corruption is endemic in Cambodia. While there is an anticorruption
law, it is not enforced effectively. The judiciary lacks institutional
safeguards that ensure transparency in the legal process, and it also
suffers from a dearth of qualified staff.

Extensive red tape is involved when obtaining licenses and business
permits, which leads to companies paying small-scale bribes to speed
up the process. Business inspections by government officials occur
in an ad hoc manner, and usually aim to extract unofficial fees. Most
companies are also forced to pay officials to facilitate electricity and
water connections.

LABOR

The government is eager to promote the country as a safe place to
invest with relatively good working conditions. To this end, it works
closely with the International Labor Organisation and its “Better
Factories Cambodia” program.

The current minimum wage for garment sector workers is US$140
per month, up from US$128 in January 2016. It is set by the Ministry
of Labor in negotiations with unions. However, most workers are not
unionized outside the manufacturing sector and there is a high level
of informal employment.
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Cambodia: Macro-political and Economic Outlook
RIFRE  ZBBURNRKERE

Labor unions within manufacturing industry are highly politicized.
The opposition party leverages political influence with unions by
championing higher wages, one of the key policy areas in which
it knows that Hun Sen cannot make major compromises without
endangering Cambodian competitiveness in the region. Consequently,
strikes are more frequent during politically contentious periods as
the opposition encourages workers to demand greater labor law
protections and higher wages.

SOCIAL STABILITY

Strikes over labor conditions and wages are relatively common in the
garment sector, which from time to time could turn violent (as occurred
in 2014) and occasionally lead to injuries and property destruction.
While companies not operating in the garment sector are better
insulated from the direct impact of striking workers, the consequences
of street-level violence on investment flows and sentiment affect all
manufacturers.

From 2012 onward, there has been an increase in the number of

strikes, a trend that Eurasia Group expects to continue as political
tensions rise ahead of the 2018 vote.

Number of strikes by year
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Cambodia: Macro-political and Economic Outlook
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TAX POLICY

The government has had long difficulties collecting tax revenue.
Obstacles include the limited capacity of staff to help taxpayers
understand their obligations, deficient technology infrastructure (no
electronic filing of taxes and lack of equipment), and limited tax audit
capabilities. Furthermore, the country has a large informal economy
and those who do not pay their taxes face no real legal consequences.

In recent years, however, there have been critical reforms in tax
policies that allow the government to collect more tax. The former
two-tier tax structure composed of the “real regime” taxpayers and
the “estimated regime”! taxpayers was scrapped in November 2016,
and all enterprises were consolidated under the “real regime.” This
improves the position of foreign companies in relation to Cambodian
businesses that evade taxes. Small-and medium-sized enterprises now
face a stricter system with more clearly defined rules. It is also likely
that Cambodia’s taxation system will rely heavily on indirect taxes in
the near future, as VAT is easier to collect and will make a significant
contribution to the overall tax pool.

1 Real regime taxpayers are registered companies, state-owned companies,
and other businesses with some system of formal accounting; estimated
regime taxpayers are companies or small ventures with no formal
accounting, and thus their taxable amounts are estimated based on
discussions between taxpayers and tax officials.

10RRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

MORRIS HOLDINGS
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B BUR

BT R ART - HEBRRZ TIEABEE
MRAEBEATRED  RERREERRE
(IWREEFRBRGEMRZRE) MEROHBRG
FATEES] o AN HEMIFEXNLERAEAX
TEROALTHFR LEAUNEREE -

TER - BTEHUREBERETT 7T BRI SRE - &
BN ARMEZHFW - B [EEHE ]
%ﬁAﬂf%ﬁﬂFﬁ%ﬁA@&mmm%ﬁw
EREE 2016511 AR - FTAEREHBET
TEEﬂEJTomﬁmLﬁmwm%ﬁﬁmﬁ'
LB E R E T EIMEER AL o R/ NEI D EIRTE
TE] 39 58 A0 BRAR AN AR WA A6 01 o TE T A HI AR IR SR I
ENFUHIE BB RRAERBREEZER - BAL
ERER S UEF AR A IE AR BE TR U A -

1 BERATRAREIMAR  BARRMEMKABER
@Eﬁ‘lﬁﬂ’)ﬁ% CEETRIERRARZEEX G
BIER AR/ NED S - FE AR ERRIEANT
A%D%Ri’%EEZFaﬁE’\JEﬁﬁﬁi%TE’J °



Cambodia: Macro-political and Economic Outlook
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IMPORT AND EXPORT MEASURES

Complex import and export regulations increase the cost of doing
business for companies. Exporters to the U.S. and the EU have
encountered difficulties because of stricter regulations in these two
markets. They must obtain a certificate of origin from the Ministry
of Commerce (delays are common) and comply with conformity
assessment requirements, but there are few agencies in the country
capable of testing and certifying products for export. Lastly, applying
for export licenses and permits is also a tedious process, as exporters
have to provide an extensive list of documentation and follow through
with many procedures. This process can be time consuming and lead
to higher costs.

Imports face time-consuming procedures for clearing customs—they
reportedly take three to seven days. The payment of bribes is common
to expedite the process. Furthermore, compulsory assessment
requirements to prove that imports meet Cambodian standards cannot
be carried out in full by the Ministry of Health because of inadequate
facilities. The tests are often outsourced to Vietnam or Thailand,
generating more costs. Lastly, import licenses are expensive.

In addition, poor infrastructure and connectivity, as well as unreliable
power supplies and telecommunications services inflate logistics
expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
code provisions and, where applicable, the recommended best
practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate
Governance Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). As the Shares of the Company were only listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 12 January 2017 (the “Listing Date”), the Corporate Governance
Code was not applicable to the Company during FY2016. Throughout
the period since Listing Date and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with the relevant provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Zou Gebing as both the
chairman and the CEO. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the
chairman and CEQO in the same individual would enable the Company
to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when
formulating business strategies and executing business plans. The
Board believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals. The Board
currently comprises four executive Directors (including Mr. Zou Gebing)
and three independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a
fairly strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the Company for
Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has made specific
enquiry of all Directors and the relevant employees regarding any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and they all confirmed that
they had fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date
of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The
Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group’s businesses and
operations. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
Board delegates to the management the daily operations of the Group
under the directions set out by the management and the Board. The
Board has established various committees and has delegated to the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board Committees”) various
duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall meet
at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be held when
warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely access to
information of the Group. There is a procedure for Directors to seek
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by them
at the expense of the Company, as appropriate.
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Directors receive at least 14 days prior to written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in the
agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company
secretary with details of the decisions reached, any concerns raised
and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final versions of Board
minutes are sent to Directors for their information and records. The
draft minutes are sent to all Directors within a reasonable time after
each meeting for their comments before being formally signed. The
signed minutes are kept in safe custody by company secretary and
are available for inspection by the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ liability has been arranged
by the Company.

As of the date of this annual report, the composition of the Board is
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zou Gebing (Chairman and CEQ)

Mr. Chen Guohua

Mr. Zeng Jin

Mr. Wang Ming

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Huang Wenli

Mr. Shao Shaomin

Ms. Zhang Bingbing

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 7 to page 13 of this annual report.
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During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, the attendance of the individual Directors at the meetings is
set out below:

ELTRHEACEREBHHN  SEFRE
EHEANT :

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend from

the Listing Date to the date of this annual report

BETEHZEAFERERMUE FERHENERRE

Remuneration Nomination Audit

Committee Committee Committee Board
Name of Director ESHA yHZEEE REZES BEREEE EEg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zou Gebing PIEEKE 1/1 1/1 1/2 2/2
Mr. Chen Guohua BRETEE £ 4 11 11 1/2 2/2
Mr. Zeng Jin el 1/1 1/1 1/2 2/2
Mr. Wang Ming THESE 1/1 11 1/2 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors BUEHTES
Mr. Shao Shaomin ARG E 11 1/1 2/2 2/2
Mr. Huang Wenli BEXELE 1/1 1/1 2/2 2/2
Ms. Zhang Bingbing Rokik&t 0/1 0/1 0/2 0/2

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide
their independent and objective views. In compliance with Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-third
of the Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has the
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group. The
Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the
Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The Company has
received annual confirmation of independence from all the independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed on
10 December 2016 and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition, the
Company arranges and provides continuous professional development
training and relevant materials to the Directors to help ensure they are
apprised of the latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business and to refresh
their knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company Director. The Directors have provided to the Company their
record of continuous professional development training, and they have
participated in training activities in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for
listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial reporting;

3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board Committees are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange

and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The members of each Board Committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

Members of the Audit Committee are Ms. Zhang Bingbing, Mr. Huang
Wenli and Mr. Shao Shaomin (all are independent non-executive
Directors). Mr. Shao Shaomin currently serves as the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
reviewed, among other things, the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 with recommendations to the Board for
approval and discussed with the management and the external auditor
the accounting policies and practices which may affect the Group, the
report prepared by the external auditor covering major findings in the
course of the audit and the accounting and financial reporting matters.
No meeting was held by the Audit Committee during FY2016 because
the Company was listed on 12 January 2017.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management and on other employee benefit
arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhang Bingbing, Mr. Huang
Wenli and Mr. Shao Shaomin. Mr. Huang Wenli currently serves as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Remuneration Committee on
28 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
and reviewed and recommended to the Board the remuneration policy
and structure relating to the Directors and senior management of the
Company. No meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee
during FY2016 because the Company was listed on 12 January 2017.

The remuneration for the Directors and senior management comprises
basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus. Details of
the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for FY2016 are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 3 members of the senior
management of the Company, whose profile are set out on pages 14
to 16 of this annual report, for FY2016 are set out below:

Number of
Remuneration band individual
Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of our Directors, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
to take up references and to consider related matters.
The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Zhang Bingbing, Mr. Huang
Wenli and Mr. Shao Shaomin. Ms. Zhang Bingbing currently serves
as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency may
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of the Board,
which includes gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, knowledge and professional experience of
the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of

diversity of Board members.

Pursuant to the first meeting of the Nomination Committee on 28
March 2017, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for
the nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors. No meeting was held by the Nomination Committee during
FY2016 because the Company was listed on 12 January 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board held two meetings during the Reporting Period, at
which the Board reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and legal and regulatory compliance,
training and continuous professional development participations of the
Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION 1 B4 B 7 B
During FY2016, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services H2016F /¥ @ NEBIIMNEZHMAERBEES
provided by the Group’s external auditor are set out below: fF,/ EELMOEERINTAR
2016
20164
RMB’000
ARET T
Audit and audit related services Eit RFEFTEERS 1,510
Non-audit services: Professional service fees in relation EER - EAEEH N ARRE
to initial public offering of the Group BHNBEERGE 2,824
Taxation and other professional services s R E A E RS 733
5,067
COMPANY SECRETARY REAME

Ms. Li Oi Lai was appointed as the company secretary of the Company =+ X B Z T 1020163 H18H EZ T B A 1 A
on 18 March 2016, who is responsible for handling company secretarial MArRiE  BEREARIMEERE (BIEMEST
matters including compliance with the companies ordinance. She is a CRANEBID) » BARGEKTERERHEEFR
NAEIE - FRTEEI T L6E/NR AR
HEEFE - ARRATEEREERE /SR EMW
EMTEHEA -

manager of SW Corporate Services Group Limited. Ms. Li has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Mr. Chen Guohua,
the executive Director is the primary point of contact at the Company
for the company secretary.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounts department, is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial statements,
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been adopted.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied
consistently. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is included
in the Report of the Independent Auditor on pages 68 to 77 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are adequate
and effective. The Group adopts a risk management system which
manages the risk associated with its business and operations. The
system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the

achievement of objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.
Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 2013 framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying
out internal control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for

identifying and analysing risks to achieve

the Group’s objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures

to help ensure that management directives to

mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Information and Internal and external communication to

Communication: provide the Group with the information

needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to

ascertain whether each component of

internal control is present and functioning.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in possession of
relevant expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. The review plan has
been approved by the Board and Audit Committee. The Board and
Audit Committee has also reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programs of the external independent
consultant and considered they are adequate and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the
relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQO”) and the Listing Rules.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the
Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules and
regulations regarding the management of inside information, including
that all employees who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to be in possession of inside information in relation to the
Company, are required to comply with the securities transaction rules
adopted by the Company which are on terms no less exacting than
those required under the Listing Rules.
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The Board and Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the period from Listing Date to the date of annual
report. Several areas have been considered during such reviews,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent
of significant risks since the last annual review, and the Group’s ability
to respond to changes in its business and the external environment;
and (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems. The Board and Audit
Committee were not aware of any material internal control defects,
and considered such systems effective and adequate throughout the
Reporting Period.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and Listing
Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting (“AGM”) of
the Company to be held each year and at the venue as determined
by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, is called an
extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
GENERAL MEETING

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal (the
“Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The identity of the
Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon confirmation by the
Company’s branch share registrar that the request is proper and in
order and made by a Shareholder, the Board will determine in its sole
discretion whether the Proposal may be included in the agenda for
the general meeting. If the request has been verified as not in order,
the Shareholder will be advised of this outcome and, accordingly, a
general meeting will not be convened as requested.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY
SHAREHOLDERS TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and the
Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to enquiries
from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are set out below:

Name: Mr. Sun Ho Chau
Telephone: (852) 2106 3238
Email: ryan.sun@morrisholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following
correspondence address and addressing to the Board:

Address: Unit 6707, 67/F, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong
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Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of divided to Tricor
Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are
set out below:

Address Level 22, Hopewell Centre 183
Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2980 1333

Fax : (852) 2810 8185

Email is-enquiries@nhk.tricorglobal.com

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue with
the Shareholders and investors through various channels including the
Company’s AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions. The chairman
and other members of the Board are present at the AGM. The annual
report together with AGM circular is distributed to all the Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of
transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated articles
of association on the Listing Date.
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Directors’ Report

ESEWRE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for FY2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators during
FY2016 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 4, pages 5 to 6 and pages 17 to 23 respectively of this annual
report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Principal risks
and uncertainties” and “Cambodia: Macro-political and economic
outlook” on pages 24 to 26 and pages 27 to 31 respectively of this
annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND
REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental sustainability.
Being manufacturing and trading companies in the PRC, the Group
is subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. Compliance
procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable laws, rules
and regulations. During FY2016, the Group has complied with relevant
laws and regulations that have significant impact on the operations
of the Group. Further, any changes in applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units from time to time.
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A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be
published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites as
close as possible to, and in any event no later than three months after,
the publication of the Company’s annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Cayman Islands.
The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange with effect from 12 January 2017.

In connection with the Listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, 250,000,000 new Shares of US$0.001 each of the
Company were issued at a price of HK$1.05 per Share for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$262,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB234,042,000). Dealings in the Shares on the
Stock Exchange commenced on 12 January 2017.

Upon the creation of the Company’s share premium account as a
result of the global offering, an amount of US$749,900 (equivalent
to approximately RMB5,185,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company has been capitalised on 12 January
2017 by applying such sum towards paying up in full at par a total
of 749,900,000 ordinary shares for allotment and issue to the then
existing Shareholders. Immediately following the completion of the
global offering and the Capitalisation Issue, the total outstanding
Shares of the Company was 1,000,000,000 Shares including the
250,000,000 Shares issued upon the global offering.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for FY2016 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
78 of this annual report.

The Board recommended a payment of final dividend of HK1.8 cents
per Share and a special dividend of HK8.7 cents per Share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 payable on 15 June 2017 to all
Shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 7 June
2017 subject to approval by the Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during FY2016 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 26 to the
Company’s financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during FY2016.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB98.1 million (31 December 2015: Nil).

FOUR YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Four years financial summary are set up in the sections headed “Four
Years Financial Summary” on page 168 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during FY2016 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and CEO) (appointed on 18 March 2016)
Mr. CHEN Guohua (appointed on 18 March 2016)
Mr. ZENG Jin (appointed on 18 March 2016)
Mr. WANG Ming (appointed on 18 March 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. ZHANG Bingbing

Mr. HUANG Wenli
Mr. SHAO Shaomin

(appointed on 10 December 2016)
(appointed on 10 December 2016)
(appointed on 10 December 2016)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election for the forthcoming year. Mr. Zou Gebing will retire at
the forthcoming AGM and will offer himself for re-election. Mr. Wang
Ming and Ms. Zhang Bingbing will both retire at the forthcoming AGM
and will not offer themselves for re-election. None of the Directors
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the
end of the initial term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors have been appointed
on 10 December 2016 and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at AGM of the Company at least once every three years
and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either the Company or the respective independent non-
executive Director.

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions And Continuing Connected Transactions” and the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at 31 December 2016 or at any time during FY2016.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at the date of this report, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:

Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

it
\

EERZZ  RHEREAREGHE
Sal: 0k

—
v
IN

BRIHEXGRFEBER S| — S REAUH
R AT EEMNBES RSB EEIN - R
201612 431 H k20164 /& R Ay (T (o] BF & - 4%
E|EAKRRNBEKERMARRRRETMHER
AERFIN A RA NG ES N EE A ERE
EEESHETENSNEARS THHb
A o

EENEF2ER

RAFHAH KRB ZEERZESTRAER
ARBREBEER (R85 MABEMEXVE
BT 2RE) 2B HEAROREEETHES
RIRFEF LA E GRBIEXVERET RSHEBMALR
A MR AT (BRERIBE S KB RO S
BABRENERIOAR) HREESF R BB KD
FEIB2FAIARERMAARE [FETA K
e lORREIIT:

REEERARRE

TSI



Directors’ Report

EEERE

(i) The Company (i) =27
Approximate
Name of Director/ Number of securities percentage of
chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
B FETHRASES REmME REHAB (M) HREES L
Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75%
s A (iFE2) T AE R 750,000,0000% (L)

Note 1: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2: Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by
Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing will therefore
be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number of
Shares in which Morris Capital is interested.

(ii) Morris Capital (Note 1)

MEEt . FEIL RFZAEZSFROTNEE -

Mizt2 . REEABRLIAF ([RBREXR]) —RhHB
REFEEFSE% - At BREFHFR
Hﬁff\%fﬁﬂ PR AR BB RAME

REREAHAEDHREFHE KO F
AREM -

(i) FEREAR (FFEE1)

Approximate

Name of Director/ Number of securities percentage of
chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 2) shareholding
BEx FETHRABMSE EmME HEHE (MEE2) HREBDL
Mr. Zou Gebing Interest of controlled corporation 85 Shares of 85%
g EEAE S EE S US$1 each (L)

85X EAR15ETT

Note 1: Morris Capital holds more than 50% of our Shares. Therefore,
Morris Capital is the holding company and an associated
corporation of our Company.

Note 2: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of the
Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at the date
of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

As at the date of this report, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO:

Shareholders Nature of interest

Directors’ Report

ESTHRE

FERRZHERS

RAFEHRAH  ARrAREESMAEGIF
336FFEZTERRECMETR - THER (K
NAIBFRITHRAHEIN) RARREHEITRA
THEBHEEERIOAR

Number of Percentage of
Shares of the

Company in issue

Shares/underlying
Shares held (Note 1)

FFE®T AEQRAEBITRAE
BRERER 14 ZBERHE (K1) ZHBAEDL
Morris Capital (Note 2) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
RBER (Misx2) BHEAA 750,000,0008% (L)
Wu Xiangfei (Note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
SRzt (FIzE3) [iRLET 750,000,0008% (L)
RAYS Capital Partners Limited Investment manager 90,112,000 Shares (L) 9.01% (L)
EREARERAF REKE 90,112,0008% (L)
Ruan David Ching-chi Interest of controlled corporation 90,112,000 Shares (L) 9.01% (L)
U= XEEE RS 90,112,0008% (L)
Yip Yok Tak Amy Interest of controlled corporation 90,112,000 Shares (L) 9.01% (L)
=3 OFE XL S 90,112,0008% (L)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Beneficial owner 70,034,000 Shares (L) 7% (L)
Portfolio Master Fund Limited BEmEEA 70,034,000/ (L)

TSNS RERERASES

Note 1: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2: Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by
Ms. Wu Xiangfei.

Note 3: Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO,
Ms. Wu Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested

in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Zou Gebing is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/or
underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at the
date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered
into or existed during FY2016.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and retaining
its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration packages
to its employees and makes contributions to social security insurance
funds (including pension plans, medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity insurance) and
housing fund for its employees. The Remuneration Committee is set up
for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and remuneration package
of the Directors and chief executive of the Group, having regard to
the Group’s overall operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices. The Group has made full contributions
for over 800 employees to both social insurance and housing funds
according to the relevant PRC labour laws and regulations. For
employees who refused to fully contribute to the social insurance and
housing funds accounts, the Group continuously communicated with
and educated them regarding the importance of contributing the social
insurance and housing funds.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for FY2016 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at
31 December 2016 or at any time during FY2016.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei
(each a “Non-Compete Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not directly
or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or otherwise
be involved in any business which may be in competition with the
business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Non-
Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition during
FY2016.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Non-
Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the non-

competition undertakings during FY2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During FY2016, the Group had the following exempt, continuing
connected transaction, details of which are set out below:

Trademark Licence Agreement with Morris PRC

Pursuant to the trademark transfer agreement, the Company, Haining
Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd. (“Haining Gelin Furniture”), Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products”),
Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd. (“Haining Morris Home Gallery”),
Haining Morris International Home Furnishings Co., Ltd. (“Haining
Morris International”) and Mstar International Trading (HK) Limited
(“Mstar International Trading (HK)”) as licensees entered into trademark
licence agreement with Morris PRC (the “Licensor”) on 31 December
2015. Pursuant to the trademark licence agreement, the Licensor
grants a royalty-free, exclusive licence to the Licensees for the
use of 12 trademarks on their related products. The transactions
contemplated under the Trademark Licence Agreement will constitute
de minimis continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules upon Listing which will be fully exempt from
Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

The Trademark Licence Agreement is effective from 31 December
2015 until the completion of transfer of all such licensed trademarks
by the Licensor to Haining Gelin Furniture. All licensed trademarks had
been transfered to Haining Gelin Furniture during FY2016.
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During FY2016, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products, Haining Gelin Furniture, Haining
Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris International, each as tenant
entered into the following respective lease agreements with Morris
PRC as landlord on 1 January 2016 (the “Zhejiang Apollo Leather
Products Lease Agreement”, the “Haining Gelin Furniture Lease
Agreement”, the “Haining Morris Home Gallery Lease Agreement”
and the “Haining Morris International Lease Agreement”, individually,
a “Lease Agreement”, and collectively, the “Lease Agreements”) for
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the lease of various premises located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, #iEA (&) @ HAEKHWNT -
PRC (the “Lease Properties”) for factory, direct sale store and office
use. The details of the Lease Agreements are as follows:
Leased Rent per
area Annum
Lease Agreement Term Tenant Landlord (sq. m.) (RMB)
HEm® SRk
HE = R BE ¥x (£F7K) (AK#7r)
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products 1 January 2016 to 1 January ~ Zhejiang Apollo Leather Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76
Lease Agreement 2026 (both days inclusive) Products
MIMEEREHMEERE 201651 A1RZ2026F1 A1H MIMKERRERR RAHE
(BfEEEMA)
Haining Gelin Furniture 1 January 2016 to 1 January ~ Haining Gelin Furniture Morris PRC 19,990.35  1,439,305.20
Lease Agreement 2026 (both days inclusive)
BERKR LRSS HE 201651 1B E20266F1 310 BERHKA RATE

(BHEEMA)
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Leased Rent per
area Annum
Lease Agreement Term Tenant Landlord (sq. m.) (RMB)
HEm® SFEHES
HEH= R BE x (£F7K) (AR%T)
Haining Morris Home Gallery 1 January 2016 to 1 January ~ Haining Morris Home Gallery Morris PRC 39,312.00  2,830,464.00
Lease Agreement 2026 (both days inclusive)
BERRERFEREHZ 20161 A1HBE202661 818 BERAURRE RAHE
(AEEEMA)
Haining Morris International 1 January 2016 to 1 January ~ Haining Morris International Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Lease Agreement 2026 (both days inclusive)
BERAERASHE 2016551 A1BE202651 A1H BERAER RATHE

(BHEEMA)

The aggregated annual caps of the Lease Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the years ending 2017 and 2018 are
RMB7.2 million, RMB7.2 million and RMB7.2 million respectively.

The entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei. Accordingly, Morris PRC is an associate
of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

The Directors believe that the Group needs to increase capacity to
tackle the increased purchase orders. As such, on 17 March 2017,
the Company entered into new lease agreements with Morris PRC
for the lease of properties of Morris PRC for factory, exhibition hall,
dormitory, canteen, office and research and development center use
(the “New Lease Agreements”) and announced to revise the annual
caps for 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020. The aggregated annual caps of
the New Lease Agreements for the years ending 31 December 2017,
2018, 2019 and 2020 is RMB15.0 million, RMB15.0 million, RMB15.0
million and RMB15.0 million respectively. For further details regarding
the New Lease Agreements, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 March 2017.
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Sales Agreement with Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. (“Jennifer

Convertibles”)

Mstar International Trading (HK) entered into a sales agreement with
Jennifer Convertibles (the “Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement”) on
1 January 2016, pursuant to which our Group agreed to supply sofas
to Jennifer Convertibles.

The Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement is valid until either (i) the
expiry of a period of three years or (ii) the date on which Jennifer
Convertibles ceases to be our connected person, whichever comes
earlier. Both parties to the agreement may negotiate to extend
the agreement for a further term of three years within two months
before the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement unless the
agreement is terminated due to Jennifer Convertibles ceasing to be
our connected person.

The annual caps of the sales by our Group to Jennifer Convertibles for
the years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB32.0
million, RMB32.0 million and RMB32.0 million respectively.

The entire issued share capital of Jennifer Convertibles is owned by
Mr. Zou Gebing. Accordingly, Jennifer Convertibles is an associate of
Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the Company
pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Since the highest relevant percentage ratio under the Listing Rules
in respect of each of the transactions contemplated under the
Lease Agreements and the New Lease Agreements and the Jennifer
Convertibles Sales Agreement is expected to be, on an annual basis,
less than 5%, the transactions will be exempt pursuant to Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
but will be subject to the announcement, annual reporting and annual
review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further
summarised as follows:

P ERER ST E —SRENT

Transaction

amount for Annual Cap for

Name of connected party Nature of transaction FY2016 FY2016
20165 2016 &

BEANERE REME REEH EBR
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AR®T T

Morris PRC (Note 1) A E (k1) Lease of properties W% E 6,521 7,238
Jennifer Convertibles Supply of sofas 4 2 30,495 32,000

Note 1:The annual cap for the lease of properties contemplated under the
Lease Agreements and the New Lease Agreements with Morris PRC
increased from RMB7.2 million to RMB15.0 million since 17 March
2017.

The continuing connected transaction mentioned above has been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transaction has been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, made during FY2016 is disclosed
in note 34 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 32 to 47 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During FY2016, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
64.9% and 62.1% of the total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted for around
22.4% of the total revenue for the year. The Group’s largest supplier
accounted for around 33.7% of the total purchase for the year.

At no time during FY2016 did a Director, a close associate of a
Director or a Shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against its directors and officers arising out
of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during FY2016
or subsisted as at 31 December 2016.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE THE
COMPANY INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

As part of the preparation for the listing, the Company implemented
a capitalisation issue of 749,900,000 Shares, and an issue of
250,000,000 new Shares during the global offering of the Company
on the Listing Date. All such Shares issued were ordinary shares and
the 250,000,000 new Shares were issued at HK$1.05 per share. The
net proceeds of the global offering received by the Company were
approximately HK$262,500,000. These proceeds are intended to be
applied in accordance with the proposed application set out in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.
As at the date of this annual report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan of use of proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option Scheme
allows the Company to grant options to eligible person(s) (the”Eligible
person(s)”) as rewards or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes which may be adopted by the
Group from time to time pursuant to which options to subscribe
for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”) must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
the listing of the Shares of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 12 January
2017 (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained, and which must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 100,000,000 Shares,
which represents 10% of the issued Shares as at the date of this
report.
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2. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to an Eligible Person under the Share
Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to time,
and provided that if approved by Shareholders in general meeting
with such Eligible Persons abstained from voting, the Company
may make further grant of options to such Eligible Person
notwithstanding that the further grant would result in the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and Other Scheme
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of the further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

3. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be exercised
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the grant of
option.

4. HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant.

5. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date of the listing of the Shares
of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 12 January 2017.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.
No share option has been granted by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption up to the date of this report.

3.

4.

Directors’ Report

ESTHRE

1218 A R - RIFERE S R E M
AEITERTAERALZBRIEMEITR
BTRETzRNER  TNEEASETRD
1% > ERRAEEAGBERALTERRARG L&
SRENBERT - KRB AIARZE BB A
TE-SERTREERE BEE-—TONERTE
BAE S A TR P B T RE B AT 81 R Ho
AEITREMMAARD (BFEE—FEEA
BN+ —EAMEETRETRD) &
HBBEBETRNA1% -

IRIEREARAE ST 2GR BERE G HARE (T
BRETEEZSRTMBNEZAEBAL
TATfE - R REETE N SEAR KT
T2 BHEFTE104F o

HARAUREEEI TR ART -

RERHE T 81 B B X P fy £ B H# (B12017
F1A128) BEEMHASTF -

BRETIANEMHFBHENARER - BEAF
WAH  ARBLEREBER BT



Directors’ Report

ESEWRE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association although there is no restriction against such rights under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules since Listing Date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
audited by Ernst and Young who shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having
approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, a resolution to re-appoint Ernst and Young as the
independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix
its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange, 250,000,000 new ordinary shares of US$0.001
each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.05 per Share
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$262,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB234,042,000). Dealings in the Shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on 12 January
2017.
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Upon the creation of the Company’s share premium account as a result of
the global offering, an amount of US$749,900 (equivalent to approximately
RMB5,185,000) standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company has been capitalised on 12 January 2017 by applying such
sum towards paying up in full at par a total of 749,900,000 Shares for
allotment and issue to the then existing Shareholders. Immediately following
the completion of the Global Offering and the Capitalisation Issue, the total
outstanding Shares of the Company was 1,000,000,000 Shares including
the 250,000,000 Shares issued upon the global offering.

On Behalf of the Board

Z0U Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Zhejiang, 28 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
v RR R TS

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 78 to 167, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter

below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
v RR R TS

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEETER
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FAREFTSEE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREETHRNTEHN

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

RERBEFERER

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded inventories of
RMB315 million after provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories of RMB17 million, which accounted for 29% of the
Group’s total assets.

MR2016F12A31H ' EBEXEBERFRRBERBEERFEREARE7
BETEEEFEAREIASET 1§ EEBEEHATEN29% o

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories is
estimated based on the net realisable value of the inventories with
reference to the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
The Group manufactures sofas, sofa covers and other furniture
products which are subject to changing consumer demands and
fashion trends of the sofa industry, and this increases the level of
judgement involved in estimating inventory provision. We focused
on this area because significant judgement is required to assess
the provision for items which may be ultimately obsolete or sold
below cost as a result of a reduction in consumer demand. Such
judgements include management’s expectations for future sales of
goods and product durability and market value of materials used in
the production.
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The disclosures in relation to inventories are included in notes 3 and
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEERBENESNGRE M BHRRMEI MM 15 -
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Our audit procedures included evaluating
management’s basis adopted by the Group
for its policy of provision against obsolete and
slow-moving inventories and the assessment
of the slow-moving or obsolete inventories. We
also evaluated the estimates and underlying
data used by the Group in calculating the
provision by checking the ageing profile of
inventories, the historical sales and usage
records of the inventories and the usages and
sales of inventories made after the year end.

B EAREFEREMHE SEEMREOKRE
K& BT B BEBR A E 12 BRI A KRG TE B
EREFE - HPIMERBREFENRE DM -
FEMNELHENMERTHEARFREZRFEDN
ERMEERNE SEREAEREREROMG
RO AR RUE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

RRETSHE

BN 2 AR E

HRBERERDBRR
(RESHSZMHA L HRLA])

FAREFTSE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREEHRNTEHN

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables

B SRR [E W15 B I

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade receivables and
bills receivable of RMB220 million, which represented 20% of total
assets of the Group.

MR2016F12A31H BEXEBHRESESERUNFEREKREE AR
2201870 ' (h EEEEELTEMN20% -

Management performs impairment assessment of trade and bills
receivables regularly. The impairment assessment is based on the
evaluation of collectability and terms of the receivables, including
the due dates, debtors’ repayment history, reputation and business
relationship with the Group.

EEETHHE S REFIEMERREETRERN G o BEE IR
R BESERWEIRUGRESN MR (BRIMAH) - BB AERE
£ BERRER BEKENEBBEENFEEL -

We focused on this area because the impairment assessment of
receivables is estimated by management through the application of
significant judgement.

BABEZED - AR ERERHREFAEAEEEEBER
EXHEEFTME -

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BERBRBESRN A MEHRRMEIRM 16 -

Our audit procedures included, on a sampling
basis, obtaining direct confirmations, checking
the aging of receivable balances, the debtors’
historical payment patterns and the bank
receipts for the payment received subsequent
to the end of the reporting period and the latest
correspondence with debtors.

BANBARF R ERRAEE  BREER
MR ZERYERFNRENREK - BEHANBE
MHRER - A RZERRE RS R 2R
THARVRITHOR & BB B A ST A o



Independent Auditor’s Report
v RR R TS

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

RRETSHR

BRBERARAFABRR
(RESHSEME L HRAA])

FAREFTSEE (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEREESHRNTEHN

Derecognition of trade and bills receivables
U TERE S W IE RN FE IR

The Group entered into trade receivable factoring agreements
with recourse with financial institutions for the factoring of trade
receivables from certain designated customers. The Group also
discounted some of its bills receivable accepted by banks in
Mainland China on a recourse basis to obtain financing. In addition,
the Group endorsed certain bills receivable to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers.

BERECEHSBEBI UMEREE ZRERFTRE R E - UERE
REETEFPHNEZRYGIE - BEERENHPBEAMBIRITRRO
DRWEBETNEREIR - UIUSREE - 1tHh - BERBEEEH
DERKREREEETRLMER  NFERNZSEHERNE S RMNR
g e

As at 31 December 2016, discounted or endorsed bills receivable
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB119 million were fully
derecognised from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, whereas factored trade receivables and total discounted or
endorsed bills receivables amounting to RMB55 million and RMB20
million, respectively, were not derecognised from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

MR2016%F12A31H - EBHEEAKRBEARK11VETHEIIRKE
BERKNEBEERGAVERARPEMERLER 1 E£ES 7
BARESSABETMARE20BETNEREE ZEKFBEKRELR
HEBHERWERBEBEEWEMLEE MR R ALK IETER -

We focused on this area because application of significant
judgement by management is required to determine whether, and
to what extent, the risks and rewards of the factored, discounted or
endorsed trade and bills receivables have been transferred to the
financial institutions or suppliers at the end of the reporting period.

BPEEZES  WHIRREENBRERRECRE  ERRKEES
BHREGIANEERENRREFHESLESARELEERE
FRSRBEIHERTREEERAEANHLE -

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRARBEEN &AM MR E3 R ES6

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
NNUAL REPORT 2016

We evaluated the terms and conditions of
the factoring, discounting or endorsement
arrangements of trade and bills receivables
entered into by the Group and checked the
risks such as default risk and slow payment
risk retained by the Group and the amounts of
trade and bills receivables derecognised by the
Group.

BFEHE BREFVHE S EKIALER
RBRIE BRI B ELENGER RGN - X B
EE BE5EEFENERQREE SN EFRRIA
K BEEERIEREZREIENEREEN
o

We then assessed whether the accounting
treatment on the derecognition of trade and
bills receivables is adequate.

BFEMER LERE SREKIBAREEER
& RERS

7 e



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREETEHR

BN 2 AR E

HRBERERDBRR
(RESHSZMHA L HRLA])

BRAEETER (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREETHRNTEHH

Impairment assessment of advances to suppliers

IR E R R B E S

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had advances to suppliers for
purchases of raw materials of RMB147 million, which represented
13% of total assets of the Group.

B ¥ R AR A i R TR 3N
: ? BEERI13% ©

MR2016F12H31H - EHAEAR

147180 1 BEEHE

N )m]}a

Management performs impairment assessment of advances to
suppliers regularly by evaluating conditions that may lead to
impairment of these advances including the suppliers’ delivery
history, reputation and business relationship with the Group.

EEEEEEEBNENRERZEFRNRBREN R EREHEER
EI’J*HFEE CBELRER BRENEBRE CHYAEMHER

SRIEEITRERS o

We focused on this area because the impairment assessment of
advances to suppliers is estimated by management through the
application of significant judgement.

BEERTZEE AR ENHERRENREN GERE
BREMEAHEGTE -

BREE

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BRABRBESNGA MBI EI R 7 -

Our audit procedures included, for significant
balances, checking to the terms of the purchase
agreements, the purchase orders placed with
suppliers, the payment advices for advances to
suppliers, examining the subsequent delivery
of raw materials subsequent to the year
end, obtaining confirmation and performing
background search on new or major suppliers.
We then assessed whether impairment, if any,
is adequate.

B ESHEFERE  REAESRTE - KEB
B BEBREcHNEEE - Atk
BEMRENXNBNE  MEFRZRORM
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Independent Auditor’s Report
v RR R TS

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

MORR \ HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BRFERARDFARR
(RESHSTMA L BRI A])

HERFEREANEMBESR
EXFHHMEEAR HOEERETERSF

EHREANEE - BIEEGEMHHRR kI
MZ BN RS

BPESGEMBREANBEAL NREREMES
BT T EZEEMERBEREMNTANEES

# e
EARMEGAVBRENES  RPNELL
BB S EHBRET  ZREBESRE

B A B SRR R R FER AR B T R

NEEEAEBREUTFFEEAHERBANIT
e EREMERITHIIE  MEBRMAR/EM
EEFEERERRL  RAFERELFE -
HENTE @ BVLEEMRS

EENGEYBBRARENER

EXRAARBEEGHMASRONC(ELM
BamEER) REE (RGP B RE R EHE
EEMPENGRAMBERE  YHERR/ELR
EUBHRERNBETIFEHAR H’“Fifa%&ﬁﬁ&rﬁ(
B ERERRAFFFEOALES BT

ERBEAMBEHREE  EFATN E5E
—%%"%%E’] N YHEERBATHREESEL

LEMNEER URERFELLRSER
BRIFEEFER BESEBRIFLLE X5
BEEMERNERNTSR -

@Tﬁ%ﬁbi%@ﬂﬁﬁ%f CEE
miz

i
i
iz
ZF

BERRE
B 754k

%4

DH /mm



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
v RR R TS

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
NNUAL REPORT 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Chiu Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
28 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SERmREMEZERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 & Z20164E12 4313 1FE/Z

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihE=s ARMET T ARBFT
REVENUE YA 5 941,617 926,471
Cost of sales $H%&E KA (671,050) (706,557)
Gross profit EF 270,567 219,914
Other income and gains H g A & Wiz 5 16,449 34,968
Selling and distribution expenses $5E& &5 #5552 (82,000) (79,873)
Administrative expenses TTH 3% (77,321) (561,102)
Other expenses and losses E b5z & E518 (1,318) (2,300)
Finance costs gt & 24~ 6 (14,332) (18,441)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B %t AT ) 7 112,045 103,166
Income tax expense FT5%iFI s 10 (31,369) (20,098)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR % A4 # 80,676 83,068
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H fib 2 25
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
REBBFIAREF D IEE B (IR M2 E Wz -
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
A B SRR MEE 3 22 4T 3,031 1,909
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FAEEWEETE 83,707 84,977
Profit attributable to owners of the parent £ 2 5% A A BG4 80,676 83,068

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent
NEEE ARG E RS EE 83,707 84,977

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
BAREREREE ARLTRET 12
Ba3|c and diluted E7< & #5E RMB10.76 cents RMB11.08 cents
AK#10.76 5 AR®11.08%

MF \ \ ) FH IMITED



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016412314

2016 2015
2016 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR®T T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3En 81 & &
Property, plant and equipment #1% - = M & # 13 44,092 40,580
Prepaid land lease payment & f< + 78 & 508 14 7,641 7,309
Deferred tax assets EEF B E E 25 2,986 3,665
Total non-current assets FERENE E A58 54,719 51,554
CURRENT ASSETS jRE&E
Inventories 17 & 15 314,543 200,833
Trade and bills receivables & 5 & U 7k 18 & & U Z 1% 16 219,980 283,812
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TERIA -~ e REMERGRIE 17 218,294 52,355
Due from related parties [ Uk R8:8 75 FUIA 22 - 193,197
Available-for-sale investment A] {ft £ £1% & 18 - 26,000
Pledged deposits 2 #1775 19 220,822 96,477
Cash and cash equivalents 3¢ KR EEY 19 73,647 33,131
Total current assets i B & E B %E 1,047,286 885,805
CURRENT LIABILITIES B & &
Trade and bills payables & 5 &1 5018 & FERT R & 20 542,715 476,463
Other payables and accruals £ fib f&{~ 508 & fE 51 & A 21 72,863 57,938
Due to related parties J& 1~ R8s 5 2008 22 - 95,647
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B ER1TE K 23 277,183 198,116
Warranty provision 1R & & 24 2,790 3,915
Income tax payables FEfTFTE %L 43,810 30,116
Total current liabilities & B {E42%8 939,361 862,195
NET CURRENT ASSETS R84 &R & 107,925 23,610
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B ELsE R TE A G 162,644 75,164
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3ER8 & &
Deferred tax liabilities #EEF B E & 25 3,880 107
Net assets & E FE 158,764 75,057
continued/...



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR¥F T AREET T
EQUITY #zk
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 F# & AEG#EZ
Share capital %7 26 1 1
Reserves f#f# 27 158,763 75,056
Total equity #4258 158,764 75,057
Zou Gebing $iEE Chen Guohua RE %
Director % Director 2%

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 & Z20164 12431 H 1FE/Z

Attributable to owners of the parent

[SYNEIE 2PN 2]
Exchange
Share Merger fluctuation Reserve Retained
capital reserve reserve funds profits Total
EX
RA&  EHtEE RBREE REEE RKREEF At

Note ~ RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
i ARBTIT ARBTE ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
(note 26) (note 27(j)) (note 27(ii)) (note 27(iii))
(FifeE2e) (PFiaE27()) (RfaE2r(i) (HfaE27 i)

At 1 January 2015
201551 A1H
Profit for the year & A% &)
Other comprehensive income
for the year: F A E M2
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements

BREMBHRROEN Z8

1,208

5,619 14,674

283,874
83,068

305,376
83,068

1,909 = = 1,909

Total comprehensive income
for the year
FREEWEETE
Disposal of a subsidiary
HE—RWEAF]
Deemed distribution to the
Controlling Shareholders
RAEREZEARAR SR AEH 5k 29
Distribution to the then shareholders

2K T2 R AR

(1,208)

1,909 = 83,068 84,977

- (6,593) 6,593 -

(314,088) (314,088)

(1,208)

At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016
M2015F12A31H &
20161 A1H
Profit for the year & A% &)
Other comprehensive income
for the year: F A E M 2K
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements

BEMBRROEN Z8

7,528* 8,081* 59,447

80,676

75,057
80,676

3,031 = = 3,031

Total comprehensive income
for the year A2 H s B 5

3,031 - 80,676 83,707

At 31 December 2016
M20165F12831H

10,559* 8,081* 140,123* 158,764

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

RMB158,763,000 (2015: RMB75,056,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

*

ZERBREEEAMHMRKANGE FHEA
R #158,763,0007T (2015 : AR #75,056,000
o) ©



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 & Z20164E12 4313 1FE/Z

2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P&t ARBT T AR¥ETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && /58 T3S RE
Profit before tax Bx AT ) 112,045 103,166
Adjustments for: Ft T %1% HE{EH FHE
Interest income &8 YA 5 (1,968) (2,008)
Depreciation #T& 7 2,690 6,328
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net
HEME  BERREER MBS  $5 7 334 834
Gain on disposal of an available for-sale investment
HE—RAMEHEREN K 5 (9) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary % —x KB Q& &K 5 - (11,336)
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments &2 TE £ 1070 & A 7 160 599
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 & W Z BRI E 7 154 1,366
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
WoRF & = ] 2R FE 7 2,790 -
Provision/(reversal of provision) against obsolete and
slow-moving inventories FRE I &R 17 S & (Bt @) 7 (950) 2,717
Write-off of inventories #ii1F & 7 - 566
Product warranty additional provision 2 Sa{R & 58 5ME # 7 4,104 5,273
Reversal of unutilised product warranties A& A & @R E @ 24 (2,092) -
Finance costs g & kA 6 14,332 18,441
131,590 125,946
Increase in inventories 77 & 1% /1 (115,550) (54,826)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables
B 5 EWGRIE R B ERR (3E ) 76,454 (71,312)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TERTFIE -~ e R E M EURIEIE I (165,928) (52,167)
Increase in trade and bills payables & 5 & < Z0IE K & (< 2= 5 18 A1 66,252 175,979
Increase in other payables and accruals
EL At N FRIE S JEET B SN 8,682 7,422
Decrease in warranty provision R {& % & 4 (3,684) (4,963)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations & & F13,/(FTA) B4 (2,184) 126,079
Income tax paid B FTEEL (14,259) (15,443)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
rEEDME (A RenE FHE (16,443) 110,636
continued/...
&/ ..
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREBR

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 & Z20164 12431 H 1FE/Z

2016 2015
20165 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARBT T AR¥EFTTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & /B ATS IR e RE
Payment for purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEME - WE&REEB MK (5,591) (7,577)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEME - BE RREEEB TS RIE 396 154
Disposal of a subsidiary & —XK W B A & 28 - 15,273
Payment for purchases of an available-for-sale investment
BEAHEERENK 18 - (26,000)
Proceeds from disposal of an available-for-sale investment
HE—HAMEHERENASFIR 26,009 -
Interest received & W F 5 1,968 2,008
Loan to a director EEE R (13,382) =
Repayment of a loan to a director EEEFER 13,382 =
Repayment from related parties B8:& /5 & 3 214,390 111,029
Advances to related parties #3 F &5 (116,840) (72,765)
Increase in pledged deposits B, & 117 538 1N (124,345) (40,750)
Net cash flows used in investing activities #& & EEFTAIR & E F 58 (4,013) (18,628)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& /Z8 TSR e R E
New bank borrowings #TR1T{& 645,836 461,663
Repayment of bank borrowings 18 3& R 17{& (572,041) (381,197)
Changes in discounted bills loans B 8hIE ZEEFHE - (132,098)
Interest paid 2~ F & (14,332) (18,441)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
MEFDHE (A BeRE TR 59,463 (70,073)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRReEBMIEINFER 39,007 21,935
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥3R & &IF & EEY 33,131 10,640
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net YN TE R BB E - JF50 1,509 556
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FREZ LR EEY 73,647 33,131
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRREEBMERINT
Cash and bank balances & K R1745 84 19 73,647 33,131
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries and the furniture division of Morris Group Co.,
Ltd.* (BEREEAR AT (“Morris PRC”) collectively referred to
as the “Group”) is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The registered office
address of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Unit
6707, 67/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

Subsequent to the year end, the shares of the Company have
been listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 12 January 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Morris Capital
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
AlBVlll).

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares (the
“Listing”) on the Stock Exchange, a business transfer agreement
was entered into between Morris PRC, the Company and certain
subsidiaries now comprising the Group, pursuant to which the
furniture business formerly operated by the furniture division
of Morris PRC was transferred to certain subsidiaries now
comprising the Group and the business transfer (the “Business
Transfer”) was completed on 31 December 2015. Subsequent to
the Business Transfer, certain subsidiaries now comprising the
Group appointed Morris PRC as an agent of providing import
and export business on behalf of them for the period from 31
December 2015 to 30 April 2016 and the period was extended
to 30 June 2016 pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated
30 April 2016.

The furniture division of Morris PRC did not exist as a legal
or statutory entity and no separate statutory accounts were
therefore prepared. The financial statements of the furniture
division of Morris PRC for the year ended 31 December 2015
have been prepared to reflect the historical results of operations
and the historical assets and liabilities of the furniture business
of Morris PRC for that year.
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

In order to rationalise the corporate structure of the Group in

preparation for the Listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company

and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent a

group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) which was completed

on 31 December 2015, further details of which are set out in

the paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section headed

“History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the

Company’s prospectus dated 30 December 2016.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued
ordinary share

eI RRME
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NAREEEHR (F)

RAEBEAEEMEEBUERERA L
e BRASENARAR REWEARE R
B R2015F12A31 AT EBEM ([F
M) o w—THBHAANRA B A2016
F12A30BMBRER [FEL - SHKDE
g —& [EHE] —B& -

B AR ER

ARAEIEMBABFEAT :

Percentage of

Place of capital/paid-up equity attributable
incorporation/ registered to the Company Principal

Company name registration capital Direct Indirect activities

28T AR EMN
ML EBRE EEEIL

Y BB R TR A HiE BE ETEEK

Mstar International Trading Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Trading of sofas,
(HK) Limited aBH 10047 sofa covers and

EERRES (BH) other furniture
BRAA] products

H A RIEE M

Haining Morris International The People’s RMB2,000,000 — 100%  Trading of other
Home Furnishings Republic of China AR ¥ furniture products
Co., Ltd. (the “PRC”) 2,000,0007T BEHMEEER
(BERREERE SEYNEP I
BR AT/ () (THED)

HERTBEBRRE
BRRAF(a)

Zhejiang Apollo Leather The PRC US$615,000 - 100%  Manufacture and
Products Co., Ltd. s 615,000% 7T sale of sofa covers
(HT B R 48 i = Bl SERHEDEE
BRAE]) (o)

AT VL B 3R 78 [ < Y
BRAF, (b)

oI RR A
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (Continued)

1.

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Issued
ordinary share

AAREEEHR (F)

MEARESR (F)

Percentage of

Place of capital/paid-up equity attributable
incorporation/ registered to the Company Principal

Company name registration capital Direct Indirect activities

28T AN EEL
SR, EBRE EEEIL

DR BB B BT MR A HiE BE FEXK

Haining Morris Home The PRC US$3,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and
Gallery Co., Ltd. H 3,000,000 7T sale of upholstered
(BERAMRRE sofas
BRA R/ (o) HERIHERREDE

BERAMRKE
BRARF, (b)

Haining Gelin Furniture The PRC US$2,100,000 = 100%  Manufacture and
Co., Ltd. i 2,100,000 7T sale of upholstered
(BERMRE sofas
BRAF)Y(C) FEREEHEDE

BEERMKREBRRAF ()

Masia Industries Co., Ltd. The Kingdom US$5,000,000 - 100%  Not yet commenced

of Cambodia 5,000,000% 7T operation
(“Cambodia”) i) A 4R
RIFZEEE
(MRmHzE])

Notes:

(@) This entity is registered as a domestic enterprise under the laws

of the PRC.

(b)  These entities are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint ventures

under the laws of the PRC.

(c) This company is registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise

under the laws of the PRC.

* The English names of these entities represent management’s best

effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not

register any official English names.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising the Group.
The companies now comprising the Group and the furniture
division of Morris PRC were under common control of Mr. Zou
Gebing (“Mr. Zou”) and Ms. Wu Xiangfei (“Ms. Wu”, spouse of
Mr. Zou) (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) immediately
before and after the completion of the Reorganisation. Prior to
the completion of the Reorganisation, the financial statements
have been prepared on a consolidated basis by applying the
principles of merger accounting as if the Business Transfer and
the Reorganisation had been completed on 1 January 2015.

2.2BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

All HKFRSs effective for the accounting period commencing from
1 January 2016, together with the relevant transitional provisions,
have been early adopted by the Group in the preparation of the
financial statements since 1 January 2015.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for an available-for-sale investment which
has been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise indicated.
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2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2BASIS OF PREPARATION

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but not yet effective, in these
financial statements.

2.3 E‘,ﬁﬁﬁ@‘n’ﬂiiﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ‘%ﬁﬂ

RERE W BN AR AER AT B8 M{E
AR AR AT RS MER] BB M S &
All o

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Revenue from Contracts with
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised

Losses!

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
included in Annual Hong Kong Financial Reports
Improvements 2014-2016 Standards?

Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in
included in Annual Other Entities’
Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28 Investment in Associates and
included in Annual Joint Ventures?

Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of
HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS
9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. During
2016, the Group performed a high-level assessment of the
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This preliminary assessment
is based on currently available information and may be subject
to changes arising from further detailed analyses or additional
reasonable and supportable information being made available
to the Group in the future. The expected impacts on impairment
arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are summarised as follows:

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based
on an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group expects to apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses that
are estimated based on the present value of all cash shortfalls
over the remaining life of all of its trade and bills receivables.
The Group will perform a more detailed analysis which considers
all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-
looking elements, for estimation of expected credit losses on
its trade and bills receivables upon the adoption of HKFRS 9. A
reasonable estimate will be available once a detailed review has
been completed. The adoption of HKFRS 9 might have an impact
on the Group’s financial performance and financial position,
including the measurement of financial assets and disclosures. In
particular, the adoption of an expected credit losses impairment
model may result in earlier recognition of credit losses of the
Group’s trade and bills receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account
balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued
amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues
on identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a
more consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and
decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018.

The Group is in the process of performing a detailed assessment
of the potential impact of the application of HKFRS 15. The
Group is expected to include more comprehensive disclosures
as required by the new standard. In addition, contracts that
contain two or more performance obligations will be accounted
for separately and this might have an impact on the pattern of
revenue and profit recognition.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At
the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use
asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
16 on 1 January 2019. As set out in note 32 to the financial
statements, the Group had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2016
amounting to RMB8,424,000. The directors of the Company are
currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and
expect that a certain portion of these lease commitments will
be required to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments
will result in additional disclosure to be provided in the financial
statements. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from
1 January 2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose of
addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses related to debt instruments measured at fair value,
although they also have a broader application for other situations.
The amendments clarify that an entity, when assessing whether
taxable profits will be available against which it can utilise a
deductible temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax
law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include
the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from

1 January 2017.

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BmRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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SE P BmRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2ATESHHEME ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties BER

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: RTHERT - UM TTATHHRABHEAEER
BRAE -

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ ZRALTATIATHTIALTHER

or

family and that person

(i)
(ii)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

%

E
(i)

(if)
)

bl AR AR
HAKBEEATED + K

RASEXAEEFARNEIE
EIEAB

FZALRHEE IR NER

applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEASEBER—SERK
group; VS

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) ZEBRSEB(XZ—HE
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary RRT] - B ARKRE RS

of the other entity);

AR MEE A

HEEDRE

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZERBUAEBAR-—F=7H
same third party; BEDE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy ZBEBAF-_FEENEED
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—EBARZFE-FESE
BB A
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) ZREBRASENEAREEFH
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity EREBMIEB MR AR
related to the Group; BRAIETE
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZREBHF(EMIIATESIS
identified in (a); FHEZEH

(vii)

(i)

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.8%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 33.3%

10% to 20%

20% to 33.3%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a

reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation

method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

100

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

102

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other
expenses and losses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated asset as at fair value
through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains or losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable
to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has
the ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statements of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed item of financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other expenses and losses in profit or
loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair
value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present value as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China are
required to participate in central pension schemes operated by
the local municipal governments, the assets of which are held
separately from those of the Group. Contributions are made by
the Group based on a percentage of the participating employees’
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully once made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States dollar
(“US$”). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional currencies
are RMB, the financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of each
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries
are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of each reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular operation is not
recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based on assessment
of the recoverability of receivables. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires management’s judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
value of receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back of doubtful
debt in the reporting period in which such estimate is changed.

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an aged analysis of its inventories and the
condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting period,
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use in
the production. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the carrying
value of inventories and the write-down of inventories recognised
in the reporting period in which such estimate is changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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3.

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of its
transactions in accordance with prevailing tax regulations and
makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is required in
determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as there are many
transactions and calculations of which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, the differences will impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the periods in which the determination is
made. The carrying amounts of current tax payables and deferred
tax assets and liabilities are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and note 25 to the financial statements.

Derecognition of factored trade receivables and
discounted/endorsed bills receivable

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting
of bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an evaluation
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements and the credit
quality and settlement pattern of the factored trade receivables
and discounted/endorsed bills receivable, management has to
determine whether the Group has retained substantially the risks
and rewards of certain receivables, which include default risks
relating to such receivables. Details of the transfers of financial
assets are included in note 36 to the financial statements.

Warranty provision

As further explained in note 24 to the financial statements, the
Group makes provisions for the warranties it gives on the sale of
its products taking into account the Group’s current sales levels
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns. As the
Group is continually upgrading its product designs and launching
new models, it is possible that the past experience of the level
of repairs and returns is not indicative of future claims that it will
receive in respect of past sales. Any increase or decrease in the
actual claims would affect profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Impairment of advances to suppliers

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for advances to suppliers at the end of each reporting
period. Advances to suppliers are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The identification of impairment of advances to
suppliers requires management’s judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the future is different
from the original estimates, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying value of advances to suppliers and impairment/
write-back of impairment in the reporting period in which such
estimate is changed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment which is the manufacture and sale of sofas,
sofa covers and other furniture products. Since this is the only
reportable operating segment of the Group, no further operating
segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

Geographical information in respect of revenue from
external customers is not presented since most of the
Group’s revenue from external customers, based on the
locations of the products delivered to the customers, is
generated in the United States of America. Accordingly,
in the opinion of the directors, the presentation of
geographical information would provide no additional useful
information to the users of the financial statements.

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

EREFHE R & (&)

R EERERE

REWMEHK - AEREFEEMHEERR
EEFEEMRETR - EETRKARE
ERDRIEES - ANEE & ST RS
TRHETTIREDRI R © 38R TR 4 M8 7 SR BRI (B
FREEEFHHE LA - WERERK
RKFBEAA BIRtafhET - AIABEERESR
MR REZ2HNREREZERNHE
R REE R ERE R ERED

7 EE#

REEMS  AREEE —ER2HEED
B BNEEMHEEDE - DBREREMEKRE
Em- ARAEEERE —EARNZ2KREESD
B ABE25E —SEED BN -

i B &R
@) KESFELEWA

2D SE PN N = BN
SEE (RRATFPXEERNM
BUESD)  FitHiE27)8NEE
FWABBOEEELR - Fitt - 8%
RE - 2IHRER GG BAME
BERBAPRRHEEINERER -

af
o &

117

i 1|

GE

N X

201



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BmRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

1

1

8

Geographical information (Continued)

(b)  Non-current assets

4. FHER (H)
WEER (H)

b) HrRBEE

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREET T

China (including Hong Kong) FE (B#EEE) 9,888 10,844
Cambodia i3 41,845 37,045
51,733 47,889

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out below:

A EFRBEEERTIRBEEERL
E27 TEREEEREEE -

RAREEEFNEHR

EAREERZFRERANI0%HIA EHEE
ZEFHWARIIIT

2016 2015
20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARMBFIT

Customer 1 BF1 211,028 145,878
Customer 2 BF2 142,823 202,472
Customer 3 &F3 105,660 N/A* T3
Customer 4 BF4 N/A* FE B> 180,308

*

The corresponding revenue of these customers is not disclosed
as they individually did not contribute 10% or more of the Group’s
total gross revenue for the relevant reporting period.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added tax.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

5.

WA~ H A R K&

WASEFTIHE & miIBR R

BHBERFE -

B i RIEER

AEERWA - B ARBEBESFTOT

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=s AR¥T T ARET T
Revenue WA
Sales of goods $HEE 941,617 926,471
Other income and gains E bl A & Ug
Interest income 7| B A 1,968 2,008
Exchange gains, net [& % Itzs » 558 14,164 18,681
Government subsidies” BT 85" 140 2,714
Sales of scrap materials 5 E# - 148
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A Ff k= 28 - 11,336
Gain on disposal of an available for-sale investment
HE A H B ERENHKE 18 9 -
Others Efth 168 81
16,449 34,968
# Subsidies have been received from the local governments in # I EMA BN AEEEDBREXNE
Zhejiang Province in respect of the Group’s contribution to sofa BRI A B) o 2016128318  #
industry. There were no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies BEEEAZERMB N RERGESBINEN
relating to these subsidies as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). (20155 : &)
FINANCE COSTS 6. MEKAEK
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Interest on bank loans $R17E& | & 11,650 4,662
Interest on discounted bills BE3H Z# F| & 2,682 13,779
14,332 18,441
e
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7.

120

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BR&AIREF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEENRBEDEF D&M (GEA) T
(crediting): 5| &18 -
2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR¥ET T AR¥BTFTT
Cost of inventories sold & &7 & Bk 4 669,210 703,274
Depreciation #T& 13 2,690 6,328
Recognition of prepaid land lease payments T8t tih A E X BMHER 14 160 599
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HEME - BERERERENEE - F58 334 834
Minimum lease payments under operating leases

KEHERTHRERENR 9,743 4,264
Auditor’s remuneration #Z £1Ef B & 1,510 33
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ and chief

executives’ remuneration (note 8)):

BEBANFAX (TEREZRFETHAEME (FizE8)) :

Salaries, wages and benefits in klnd e TEREDMFZ 130,439 103,719

Pension scheme contributions* 3Rkt 2 4 9,073 6,661

139,512 110,380
Provision/(reversal of provision) against obsolete and

slow-moving inventories™*

PRERBRTFEREG (BERE) ~ (950) 2,717
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value*

GFEMBZE R EIRFE 2,790 =
Write-off of inventories™ 17 & MU ** - 566
Impairment of trade receivables, net** & 5 BRI F(E « FEE 16 154 1,366
Product warranty additional provision = G4 & 58 9N & 5 24 4,104 5,273
Listing expenses MRz 22,262 3,155

* At 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future
years (2015: Nil).

* The above items are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

This item is included in “Other expenses and losses” on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

eI RRME
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EERFETHAEME

RIEBXAEZ EMARR ([ EMmRAD -
EBRFEMIZEI83(1)(@) * (b) * () R(f)ER
NE (REEEMEER) RAE D
ZEREENTETRAEMESRENT :

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Fees #1& 2,121 =
Other emoluments: E #hEEH

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4% - TERE YA 1,906 1,305
Discretionary bonuses BB 1EAT 2,780 846
Pension scheme contributions iR {RET 2|44 5% 94 12
4,780 2,163
6,901 2,163

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYFHITES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

FABZHFNTEETNRTHIIM
T

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARMBFT

Ms. Zhang Bingbing &Kk £
Mr. Huang Wenli & 31 % 4
Mr. Shao Shaomin AB 4 &4t 4+

Ms. Zhang Bingbing, Mr. Huang Wenli and Mr. Shao
Shaomin were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 10 December 2016.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2015: Nil).

wkokit - EXE LA MBI
HR2016F12 A10B EEE AR A T
B IENITES -

MEEMFEANRNBLIFATES L
B (20165 : &) o
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

122

directors

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

8. EERFETHAEME

(b) The chief executive officer, and executive

Certain executive directors of the Company received

remuneration from the furniture division of Morris PRC

and certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group for
their appointments as directors of the Company or in their
capacity as employees of the Group. The remuneration of

each of these executive directors is set out below:

Salaries,
allowances,
and benefits

==

(#&)

(b) THRABKRHITES

ARBETHTEENERERAR
AEFYFAETREREMUERET S
B ERERPFIRIRSEKR AN EENE
THEAREDRME - ZEFHTES
HBNE B 50T

Discretionary

Pension
scheme

Total

Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e I8
e REYFZ BBRA  RAGHEIMR M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARBTT ARETT ARETTT
Year ended 31 December 2016
B Z2016F12831A L
FE
Executive Directors: #1TE = :
Mr. Zou BB5E 4 1,284 1,518 2,567 28 5,397
Mr. Chen Guohua PR Bl 2 %% 4 331 162 51 28 572
Mr. Zeng Jin B & 54 331 159 51 28 569
Mr. Wang Ming T 84 % 4 175 67 111 10 363
2,121 1,906 2,780 94 6,901
Year ended 31 December 2015
B £2015512H31H
LEFE
Executive Directors: $11TEZ % :
Mr. Zou BB 5c 4 - 1,153 811 - 1,964
Mr. Chen Guohua PR B2 %t 4 - 11 - - 11
Mr. Zeng Jin &4 - 136 35 12 183
Mr. Wang Ming 84 % 4 - 5 - - 5)
- 1,305 846 12 2,163

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)

(b) The chief executive officer, and executive
directors (Continued)

Mr. Zou was redesignated as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 18 March 2016.
Mr. Chen Guohua, Mr. Zeng Jin and Mr. Wang Ming were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on 18
March 2016.

The remuneration of Mr. Zou, Mr. Chen Guohua, Mr. Zeng
Jin (2015: Mr. Zou) disclosed above was also included in
the remuneration of the five highest paid employees as set
out in note 9 to the financial statements.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2015: Nil).

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2015: one), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the five highest

eI RRME
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8. EERFEITHAEME

(%)
(b) THRABRUNTES (4)

B ER2016F3A18HAT AAR
BIMITESRITHRER - REEL
g e R AR T EN201643
A18BBEZEFEARNRRNITES -

EXFBER L  REEXERE
&5t & (201545 « FIEE) B F B IR
S A TS ERAR I ST OPT B Il B = 7 A
THFMA -

BT AEER T EAHABRER
3 A B REM S 8 %k (2015
€2,

9. AlVBEHEE

FRARUGRSFHRERECRBRARA=ZUES
(20165 : —fu) - AAEMESNFRER
EXHES - AfilkS RN HMFHIES

paid employees are as follows: ot
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBFIT
Fees % 1,946 =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - TEREWHIHR 3,639 2578
Discretionary bonuses BV 1E4L 6,239 811
Pension scheme contributions & K5t 2|47k 100 25
11,924 3,414
e

2016 &
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9.

124

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

9. AfuEEHEE (&)

N FTIBENZSHEEHENT :

2016 2015
20166 20154
Nil to HK$1,000,000
Z%1,000,000/ 7T 2 4
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
2,000,001 T £2,500,000/% 7T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
2,500,001 7L %2 3,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
3,500,001 7 £4,000,000/8 7T 1 =
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
6,000,001/ 7C%6,500,00078 7T 1 -
5 5

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to any
of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2015: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10.INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

Under the income tax law of the PRC, companies with operations
in Mainland China are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at
a rate of 25% (2015: 25%) on the taxable income.

Taxes on profits assessable in elsewhere have been calculated
at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

eI RRME
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10. T8 %

RERESBEERRBRZFESNRA KRR
Bl REEBERREHEREBR LS
BANERIFTEH -

BRNBHIRBEEEE SN G5 BRB
i M #216.5% (2015%F : 16.5%) BB F &5t
R -

RIBRBEFTBRE - NP BRAFERESD
NABEREEATIKAK25% (20154 ¢
25%) BN EFTER ([CIT]) °

RE b [ B FER A S R IR A R B & Py
ERAERORITHREFH -

2016 2015
201645 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFTT

Current — PRC BNHA —
— Charge for the year — £ H 18,587 12,421
— Overprovision in prior year — &1 & [Z B 58 # (627) =
Current — Hong Kong BEf — &/ 8,957 7,272
Deferred (note 25) IEIE (FfzE25) 4,452 405
Tax charge for the year ERFE S H 31,369 20,098
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10.

126

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

10. Fr5 % (&)

AEENHERSHER

)RR R A R 0

EFHORERELENERSBEEZENT

follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥BTTT
Profit before tax Bk %t Al Fl 112,045 103,166
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
profits in the respective jurisdictions
REBRVERBEERNEAENTIE 24,595 21,180
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the distributable
profits of the Group’ s PRC subsidiaries
255 [ BT B A R AT 9 B v A BB 0% TR R M 2 28 3,921 107
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ A] F1%: B 32 6,521 9,185
Super-deduction of eligible research and development expenditure
A BRI BEEN (3,234) =
Income not subject to tax R U A (1,425) (419)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods
LB E BAE BN EAT 18 2 SR B (627) -
Tax losses utilised from previous years @7 FE 2 B A F EHE B (20) (10,337)
Tax losses not recognised 7 AT 18 E518 1,638 396
Others EAth = (14)
Tax charge for the year AT IES H 31,369 20,098

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 22.0% (2015:
20.5%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax
rate was caused by a change in the profitability of the certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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11.DIVIDEND 11. R E
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥ETTT
Final dividend proposed subsequent to the Reporting Period
s BAfE 1R R R HA R B,
— HK1.8 cents (FY2015: Nil) per ordinary share
- BIRE®AR1.8% L (20156 F : &) 16,135 -
Special dividend proposed subsequent to the Reporting Period
& AR BIRE IR S
— HK8.7 cents (FY2015: Nil) per ordinary share
- BIREBARS. 7T (20155 « &) 76,840 -
92,975 -

12

The final dividend and special dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016 proposed subsequent to the Reporting
Period have not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the Reporting Period and are subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is based on the profit for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent of
RMB80,676,000 (2015: RMB83,068,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 750,000,000 (2015:
750,000,000} in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary share used to calculate
the basic earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2016 was based on 750,000,000 ordinary
shares, representing the 100 ordinary shares of the Company
as at 1 January 2015, 99,900 ordinary shares of the Company
issued under the Share Split (as defined in note 26) and
749,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued under the
Capitalisation Issue (as defined in note 39), as if these additional
shares issued under the Share Split and the Capitalisation Issue
had been in issue throughout the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2016.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2016 as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

12.

MEHABEBRE £2016512 8318 IEF
[§ 2 REARE B M R Bl A% B0 £ pA 3R 25 B R 1
REBE  BAAAQRRENEERER
FRE ([BREBFRL]) -

N
4

KB ANE

N B3 1 B
TERES™

HZE2016F12A81HILFE » BEREARA
FIIREBEAFES AR L BAESFEAR
1l 3% F A R #80,676,0007T (20154 = A
R#83,068,0007T) A M FEEHEITER
[i% B9 N #E £ 5 #750,000,000/% (20154 :
750,000,0000%) =+& o

HZE2015% &2016F 1231 H IEFE » &
HEREXRZMNHE B INEFHEHE
f# %750,000,000/% Ei@A% - BIFEARTR
20151 A1H K100 LB « A QAR
BRD O (& RME26) #17H99,900
IR IR R A ARIRBERNCET (EER
B 5F39) B 1THY749,900,000/% L@AL - A
ZERBRO DT RE AN EITEITHEEIN
%15 15 45, A A E 220154 20164912 A
1B I FEHBEITEIN

BRAAREBNE ZE2015%F R20164F 12 A 31
B IFF I EEITEIND B S T RAR -
WA EEHE2015F X2016F12A31H 1k
FENTGRERBFL EHE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.¥1% - REKR®&ZE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- Plant and and office Motor Construction
ments machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE BER &8 &#
ML WeE RBORE AE ERIR #mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®BTR ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TR AR¥TR
31 December 2016
2016%12H31H
At 31 December 2015 and
1 January 2016:
R2015F12A318 K&

2016F1H1H

Cost A& 4,022 18,492 5,366 1,279 29,736 58,895

Accumulated depreciation

ZEtinE (2,581) (11,162) (4,554) (18) = (18,315)

Net carrying amount

REHE 1,441 7,330 812 1,261 29,736 40,580
At 1 January 2016, net of

accumulated depreciation
201651 /18 -

Mk R E 1,441 7,330 812 1,261 29,736 40,580
Additions 7N 316 791 1,311 16 2,438 4,872
Disposals/write-off H%& / #i$H = (723) () = = (730)
Depreciation #T& (424) (1,544) (198) (524) - (2,690)
Exchange realignment

P& 3 A 22 - 8 - 2,030 2,060
At 31 December 2016, net of

accumulated depreciation
#2016F12A318 -

HR 25T E 1,355 5,854 1,926 753 34,204 44,092
At 31 December 2016:

R2016%F12A318 :
Cost A 4,360 15,520 6,658 1,295 34,204 62,037
Accumulated depreciation
RitHE (3,005) (9,666) (4,732) (542) - (17,945)
Net carrying amount
REHE 1,355 5,854 1,926 753 34,204 44,092

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.¥1% - BREK®ZE (&)
(Continued)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve-  Plant and  and office Motor Construction
Buildings ments machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
BIE -
HE = & ALK
BEY  WEREE W MARE "E ERIR st

Notes RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARBTT ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETI ARBTI

31 December 2015
2015F12H31H

At 1 January 2015:
#R201561F1R

Cost F A 75,173 3,543 117,947 10,963 10,450 23,109 241,185
Accumulated depreciation

ZEtiE (30,015) (2,224)  (87,742) (9,213) (8,044) - (137,238)
Net carrying amount

REFEE 45,158 1,319 30,205 1,750 2,406 23,109 103,947

At 1 January 2015, net of
accumulated depreciation

20151 /18

Bk RFHTE 45,158 1,319 30,205 1,750 2,406 23,109 103,947
Additions 30 = 442 505 255 405 5,251 6,858
Disposals & (16,581) = (766) (197) (25) = (17,569)
Disposal of a subsidiary

HE—RMEAF 28 = = (21,104) = (76) - (21,180)
Depreciation #7 & 7 (3,232) (345) (1,510) (548) (693) = (6,328)

Deemed distribution to the
Controlling Shareholders

REMERBRELN DK 29 (25,345) - - (457) (756) - (26,558
Exchange realignment
ME 5 AR - 25 = 9 = 1,376 1,410

At 31 December 2015, net of
accumulated depreciation
M2015%12 8318 -
MR EFHTE = 1,441 7,330 812 1,261 29,736 40,580

At 31 December 2015:
M2015%F12A318 :

Cost FA - 4,022 18,492 5,366 1,279 29,736 58,895
Accumulated depreciation

ZEtinE = 2,581)  (11,162) (4,554) (18) - (18,315)
Net carrying amount

BEEFE - 1,441 7,330 812 1,261 29,736 40,580
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SE P BmRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

= x4
14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. B T FHEFIH
2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARET T ARBTT
Carrying amount at beginning of the year F#]HERE A 7,465 35,194
Amortisation #$4 7 (160) (599)
Disposals & = (10,248)
Deemed distribution to the Controlling Shareholders
BAEMZERARRAIE L 85 K 29 - (17,329)
Exchange realignment [E 3, 382 503 447
Carrying amount at end of the year R EREE 7,808 7,465
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
EEFAERNFIE - £E KA T RKFIENREE D (167) (156)
Non-current portion FE7 &) &85 7,641 7,309

R20165F12A31H  AEE K B 2 7
Masia Industries Co., Ltd.AIFar L 2B
EREARATEENTIHELT W (REE
& AN K #7,808,0007T © 20155 /& A K #
7,465,0007T) H) P A 42 78 & I & AMasia
Industries Co., LtdBIEZ&EEL - BE WM
It ®FER A Masia Industries Co., Ltd.
EREBSEHERZERBELREEAREA
WA +ERESRNEEY R+

As at 31 December 2016, the title certificate with respect
to the land with a carrying amount of RMB7,808,000 (2015:
RMB7,465,000) in Cambodia leased by Masia Industries Co.,
Ltd., the Group’s subsidiary, from the Sihanoukville Special
Economy Zone Co., Ltd., was not registered in the name of
Masia Industries Co., Ltd.. Notwithstanding, the directors are
of the opinion that Masia Industries Co., Ltd. is entitled to the
lawful and valid occupation and use of the buildings and land to
which the above-mentioned land use rights relate based on the

lease agreement and the subsequent assignment.

o

15.INVENTORIES 15. &
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Raw materials 47 %} 220,873 25,990
Work in progress & 74,075 162,382
Finished goods &K @ 19,595 12,461
314,543 200,833
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16. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016412314

16. EZ BN IE R FEWWEE

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Trade receivables from third parties & 8 5% =7 88 5 fE i 5008 200,466 169,429
Trade receivables from related companies & B B#:E A & 1) e U 78 - 31,155
Impairment of trade receivables & 5 & U Z B R B (159) -
Trade receivables, net & 5 B GKIA « JFE 200,307 200,584
Bills receivable arising from intra-group sales 3k & £ B A4 & M B & 19,673 83,228
219,980 283,812

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit.
The credit period is generally one to two months, extending up
to two to three months for major customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision, is as follows:

AEBHRARZFPNESRMUEERE - 5
EH-—RR—EMEAR  TEFPHEEH
ERERZME=EA - BUTPREERS
EERE - AEBERNBRBEHNEREE
R BHESHEREEEEHR
A o AREYE L E E 5 W IE KRR
SREHTE TR R IERREBEE N
RIEN - BEHRMKREREREE AT

B o
oy

RABERR - REBEEZAHRINGEEN
B 5 WA M ERERNRESITOT -

2016 2015

2016 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Within 3 months 31 8 A 201,870 205,266
4 to 6 months 4% 61A A 12,110 36,837
7 to 12 months 7& 121 A 6,000 41,386
Over 1 year @14 - 323
219,980 283,812

el 13 |
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

16.

132

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

==

(%)

16. ES5ENRIER BN EE

B (5l Sk KRR RRER B 5 RUGIR

REREEOREONAOT

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFTT
Neither past due nor impaired B >k i1 5 75 £ 8 (2 204,833 257,983
Less than 3 months past due #H3{E A LA T 15,147 13,454
3 to 6 months past due #HI3ZE61E A - 5,931
Over 6 months past due #iHA#A:@61E A - 6,444
219,980 283,812
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables S EWGENREREEEINT
are as follows:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
At beginning of year ] - 6,265
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2 RREEE (Hi5E7) 154 1,366
Disposal of a subsidiary & — XK B A 7 = (317)
Deemed distribution to the Controlling Shareholders
RAIEMIEAR AR R E 8 5k - (7,314)
Exchange realignment [E 3, 5§ % 5 -
At end of year K 159 -

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB159,000 (2015: Nil) with the same amounts
as carrying amounts as at 31 December 2016.

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in principal
payments and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B S RWIEREREREERNERE
5 WG IEEE AR 159,000 (2015
F:F) S BEEMN2016F12A31H

MAREEAER

{85! 2 8 18 5 55 8 Y sk 7R S22 T ol 7 75 TR =
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Yo e



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

16. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 16. EZ BRI FIE R EIWEE

(Continued)

Trade receivables from related companies

==

=)

KAMERBNE S REKIR

2016 2015

201645 2015%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T AR¥EFTTT

Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. - 30,900
Haining Morris Coffee Catering Co., Ltd.* (“Morris Coffee Catering”)

BEZAMBEERERAA ([EEMBFEEK]) - 255

- 31,155

Maximum amounts outstanding on trade receivables from related
companies during the year:

FARBERTNE S RIGIRR S AE
B

2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBTFT

Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. 35,464 126,948
Haining Morris Trading Co., Ltd.* (“Morris Trading”)

BERTEHERRAR ([RBESH]) - 14

Morris Coffee Catering 52 Ul BFE 7 255 255

The above related companies are controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders. The trade receivables from the related companies
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have a repayment term
of 30 to 90 days. The above trade receivables from related
companies have all been settled as at 31 December 2016.

* The English names of these entities represent management’s best
effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not
register any official English names.

LiBEE R R RERRERIES - REBERD
ANESEKRRELAERR 2B RME
B0E0KRMERE - LUl REBEER AW
Z S EWFIEE R2016512A31H 2304

N=-4
/8 °
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17.

18.

134

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND

17. 8 FE - REREMER

T

OTHER RECEIVABLES E QL
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Advances to suppliers 81 14 [i& 7 7018 147,033 17,163
Other prepayments H {81 7B 3,579 3,108
Deposits and other receivables &4 K H fth fE Uk I8 67,515 31,933

Current portion of prepaid land lease payments

TEfT L i & FRIBRRE EDIH 167 156
218,294 52,355

None of the above assets were either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

Hit B EMEAIERE - 5t A Ll AER
H) & B A 2 B AT AN 4 R RO R ) FE MR IR
B -

18. A/ HERE

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥BTTT
Unlisted principal-protected investment, at fair value
AETRABKRE  RAREFE - 26,000

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
entered into a contract of a structured investment with a
financial institution. The structured investment was principal-
protected at the maturity date and the expected annual rate
of return was 1.9% per annum. In the opinion of the directors,
the available-for-sale investment was expected to be realised
within 12 months after 31 December 2015. Accordingly, the
investment was classified as a current asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015. No
gain/loss in respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investment
was recognised in other comprehensive income or reclassified
from other comprehensive income to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The structured investment had been
settled in January 2016 and the related gain from this investment
amounting to RMB9,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HZE2015F12A31H I FE » AEFE—
REeMBBIIVABERESD - HRER
BEREISAARARIRE  BHEFFLIR
EKE1.9% - EERE - AIHEERETER
©H2015%12 A31 B 181218 A W& A -
It - 201512 A31H @ I ERGZAE
BRARANDEARBDEE - HE2015F
12A31BEFE SIEAREEAHEE
EEEBHRE BEREMEERER
ERIABHEMEERIEFTOEEEE -
2016F1 A - BB ECKLES - %ILE
R ES A R¥9,0007T B RELE 2016412
A31B L FEMBEFER -
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

(Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale investment required the
directors to make estimates about the expected future cash
flows from future proceeds when the investment matured and the
fair value had been estimated to be the principal plus estimated
return. The directors believed that the estimated fair value
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2015 was reasonable, and that it was the most
appropriate value.

Below is the significant unobservable input to the valuation of
the available-for-sale investment together with a quantitative
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2015:

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016412314

18. A ERE (&)

ARHERENAABLBELHESHNIE
A EIHRRT 2R B AR RFTIS B TEHR R R IR &
NEEHE  MARBEEHGEE RSN
LIEEEHR - EERAE - N2015F12 A 31
B sTAGREVBRAAERNHEEARBEASE
2 BARRENEHE-

A EREHER A E AT A SR AR
BERNR20156F12A31BNELBRRE D
W

Significant
unobservable input Input Sensitivity of fair value to the input
ERTABEBASE PN ¢ AREHEABBENHRE
Unlisted available-for-sale Estimated return rate 1.9% 2% increase/(decrease) in estimated rate
investment fHErEFRE of return would result in a increase/
REMAIHBERE (decrease) in fair value by RMB114,000

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s available-for-sale investment:

As at 31 December 2015

fhetEHm=EEN Oid) 2% » BEEH
DREE,CRD) AR114,0007T

DRERBR

TE]

A

2015512 A31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTRMABENAAEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT BEARRT
ERMIEHRE BEBARE BEBASE
(ZE14R%) (ZE24%) (%38%) a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETT ARETTT
Available-for-sale investment: A] f H &R E -
Unlisted principal-protected investment
RETRAEIEE - - 26,000 26,000

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RERN @REEFIRBEE2R AR EF

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2015: Nil).

BrMYEER  TEEAXBHEILMD
B5 (20155 : T) o

LS |35

2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SE P BmRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

19.

136

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

19. R RBETEEBYREEH
73K

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARETTT

Cash and bank balances IR & & IR1T45 52 294,469 129,608
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payable (note 20)

B B EENEERFR (MisE20) (197,942) (96,477)
Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans (note 23)

B RITEROEERFR (MEE23) (22,880) =
Total pledged deposits #1177 5K 4858 (220,822) (96,477)
Cash and cash equivalents & MR & EEY 73,647 33,131
Cash and cash equivalents denominated in:

RekREEEMRUTEREE

RMB AR# 3,065 12,242

Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) 77T ([T ]) 241 1,331

US$ %7t 70,341 19,558

73,647 33,131

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances denominated in RMB amounted to RMB202,203,000
(2015: RMB108,643,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RIBEHR - AARBHENRES RIRITHE
# A AR #202,203,0007T (20154 @ AR
#108,643,0007T) - ARSI A B iK%
REME - A - ARER B R INEE F
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20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

20, EGENREBRENERE

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Trade payables to third parties FEfIE =HHE 5 A 297,466 290,587

Trade payables to related companies &I B:E R T E 5 K E - 4
Bills payable FEftZ= i

— arising from intra-group purchases — REEEANEE 121,133 152,900

— arising from third party purchases — REFE=HHEE 124,116 32,972

542,715 476,463

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEHR - RBEZAH25INE FENK
BRENRBENREDTAT

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTIT

Within 1 month 11&8 A & 177,558 47,127
1 to 3 months 1E31# A 163,753 132,452
3 to 6 months 3Z=61# A 180,468 196,048
Over 6 months #B:E61E A 20,936 100,836
542,715 476,463

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade
payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days while
bills payable are settled on a term of 90 to 180 days.

EHRENFERENEZEATTE - E5/E
FNFZHEBENRI0OE180RNEE - MENE
EBIRO0E180H NEEE -

R 137
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20.

138

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
(Continued)

Certain bills payable were secured by pledged deposits with
aggregate carrying amounts as listed below:

20, EZENRERENERE

==

(&5

ETRENREHEERFRELEN  2EHA
TR AREESRIINAT

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARETTT

Pledged deposits of the Group (note 19) A& E & E HKIFF 71 (FizE19) 197,942 96,477

Pledged deposits provided by Morris PRC,

a company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

IR SRR | ) 2 TS T R IR GO B IR 7 3K - 236,133

In addition to the above, certain bills payable as at 31 December
2016 were secured by personal guarantees, and properties
provided by the Controlling Shareholders, corporate guarantees
provided by Morris PRC and Zhejiang Morris Property Co., Ltd.*
(“Morris Real Estate”) (i IRAMHRHEBRAF]), which are
related companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders,
and corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties.
The pledged assets and/or personal/corporate guarantees
provided by the Controlling Shareholders and companies
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders have been released
as at the approval date of the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015, certain bills payable were secured
by personal guarantees, life insurance policy and properties
provided by the Controlling Shareholders, corporate guarantees
provided by Morris PRC and Morris Real Estate, which are
related companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders,
and corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties.
* The English name of this entity represents management’s best
effort at translating its Chinese name as this entity did not register
any official English name.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B bt F S R20165FE12A318 & F
ENZERERBRERENEAEZERREY
¥ RAPEERINIEAHRIEFRAF
(IRAME]) (9 RBITERRF LG @S
AR) REMNDAERERBYE = FiRER
RNEEREER o IR KRR A% 54
MARRHNBEEFEER, HBEA 2
AIERE RS RT BB B R -

M2015F12 4318 + A TERNEEHRZER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

20.

EZRNRERENRE

(Continued) (%)
Trade payable to a related company: ENBERRMNE S FHIE
2016 2015
201645 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Morris Trading A E 5 - 4

The above related company is controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders. The balance was unsecured, non-interest-bearing
and had a repayment term of 30 days.

.OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 21.

R BRE A R AR AR E S o MRARREE S
EEA - RBXMAIORERY

Hib B REAREERA

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBET T

Other payables Hfth f& 1z B 50,403 51,490
Accruals FEFTE A 22,164 5,569
Receipt in advance 8 Ut 5118 296 879
72,863 57,938

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are
normally repayable on demand.

Hitt BN RIAKE ER AR R RBREAR

BRIE -

RAEIRARRAR]

2016 R
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22 BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 22.EERE K W4 ER

140

An analysis of the balances with related parties, and a loan to
a director, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

are as follows:

BIFE B R FEH$£383(1)(d)E & A7) (#
BEEFRER) BUE=%n
NEBRLREEERNOTRBENT -

Maximum outstanding

amount
during the year
FRAREREESE
2016 2015 2016 2015
20164 20154 20164 2015%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR®Tn ARETI ARETR ARETT
Amounts due from related parties
FE R BAE S R IE
Morris PRC A (a) - 182,534 481,970 731,534
Haining Morris International Leather Garment

Co., Ltd.* (“Morris Garment”)

BERRERREFRAR ([REAKE]) (@) = 1 1 26
Morris Leather & 7 % (@) — - 96 -
Morris Real Estate 52 & (@) - 10 10 528
Morris Trading A E % (a) = 1,170 1,170 7,793
Morris Coffee Catering 5 2 M HEE 2% (@ = 176 176 176
Morris Capital Limited A& RN AR A A (@) = 12 23 12
Mr. Zou B E (b) - 9,016 23,735 46,470
Ms. Wu &322 4 (b) - 278 483 278

- 193,197
Loan to a director EE &

Mr. Zou B 4E (b) - = 13,382 -
2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt aE AR¥ET T ARBTT

Amounts due to related parties F&{1E3E 5 FRIE
Morris PRC & (a) - 95,639
Morris Trading 8 E % (a) - 8
Mr. Zou 54 - -
- 95,647

*

The English name of this entity represents management’s best

effort at translating its Chinese name as this entity did not register

any official English name.
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22. BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 22. ERHHERR (F)
(Continued)
Notes: MIsE
(a)  These entities are controlled by the Controlling Shareholders. (@) FEEEEBAHERRRIES -
(b)  Mr. Zou and Ms. Wu are the Controlling Shareholders of the Group. b  BRERBLERARBNZBRR
The outstanding balances with the above related parties REPRAETMARERERBIEESMHE
represented balances that were non-trade in nature, unsecured, B AEHERIRERER -
interest-free and were repayable on demand.
I+ =
23.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 23. 5T B RITER
BORROWINGS
2016 2015
20164 20154
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity RMB’000 rate Maturity RMB’000
BEBRFIZE B AR%®Tx BEBEFI=E BE ARBTT
Current - secured
BIHER — 2337
Bank loans $R1TE X 1.4%-7.4% On demand 187,072 4.4%-8.5% On demand 60,000
BER JREK
Bank loans $R{TE & 4.4%-4.6% 2017 35,000 1.4%-8.5% 2016 57,627
20175 2016%F
Factoring loans with 3.7% 2017 55,111 3.0% 2016 80,489
recourse 20175 20164
BB RBERREER
277,183 198,116
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Analysed into: DT AN T&IE :
Bank borrowings repayable within one year or on demand
R—FAKIZERERBRRITER 277,183 198,116
= ‘ﬁ.j/,':‘iﬂ,a\

n ol

2016 &
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

23.INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  Certain of the Group’s secured bank loans are secured by:

(i) pledged deposits of RMB22,880,000 (2015: Nil) as at 31
December 2016;

(i) a pledged deposit of RMB500,000 as at 31 December 2015
which was provided by Morris PRC, a company controlled
by the Controlling Shareholders;

(i) pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which were
provided by Morris PRC (2015: Nil);

(iv)  pledges of certain properties as at 31 December 2015 and
2016 which were provided by the Controlling Shareholders;

(vy a pledge of the Group’s receivable from Morris PRC
amounting to RMB13,247,000 as at 31 December 2015;

(v  personal guarantees provided by the Controlling
Shareholders as at 31 December 2015 and 2016;

(vii)  corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC as at 31
December 2015 and 2016;

(viii)  corporate guarantees provided by Morris Real Estate, a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at
31 December 2016 (2015: Nil);

(ix)  corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties
as at 31 December 2015 and 2016; and

X) pledges of certain properties which were provided by
Morris Real Estate, a company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders (2015: Nil).

The pledged assets and/or personal/corporate guarantees as at
31 December 2016 provided by the Controlling Shareholders and
companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders have been
released as at the approval date of the financial statements.
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= 4= [ xhH =
23.INTEREST-BEARING BANK 23. 5T ERITER (&)
BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) MieE « (48)
(b)  The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in the following (b) REREWRITEFKIR NI EHEHE -
currencies:
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR%TT
RMB AR# 180,450 70,450
US$ =7t 96,733 127,666
277,183 198,116
(c) The Group’s bank loans were at fixed interest rates. (c) AEEMRITEFIZETEFEEE -
24. WARRANTY PROVISION 24. RIEB
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
At beginning of year ] 3,915 3,605
Additional provision (note 7) SB5MN&# (Fi3E7) 4,104 5,273
Reversal of unutilised amounts in prior year @ &€ 2 K &) /8 2118 # (o) (2,092) =
Amount utilised during the year R4 &) B (3,684) (4,963)
Exchange realignment [ i, 78 % 547 -
At end of year K 2,790 3,915
The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers REBERETEFRE-—FHERRER
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or % BBERIEIER - BRENEDEESHE
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is BRES - REBBESEHBERHEE RBET
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the s R EBFREITHE - AEBEBFER
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on S EEE - WARBRIELEET ©
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
LTl
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25.

144

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets

25.

IEERIH
EEBAAE
Unrealised profit arising

from intra-group transactions
EERBREELENRSEEF

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBFT

At beginning of year ] 3,665 3,963
Charged to profit or loss during the year A B 183551 A (679) (298)
At end of year K 2,986 3,665

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB2,045,000 (2015: RMB1,346,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

AEERETEABHREAERSARE

2,045,0007T (20154 = A K #1,346,000

TO) R—Z2RFREE - AIAREHEARRE

RUEN - ARELBRTCHARENNB A

AIEEE—RER - MERBEN KR /T

AlRE AR ERIAEE - B ENZEER
RIEERIABE °

ELEHIREE

Withholding taxes

BB
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
At beginning of year F /] 107 =
Charged to profit or loss during the year F£ A B 1851k 3,773 107
At end of year FR 3,880 107
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25. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 25. EEBIE (&)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) ELEHREBEAE (&)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% REFBELEMEHOE - RPBERIZAINE
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign RAEGEAINIREEDIRIE - FiR10%
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in B R BUR TR o FX AR TE 8200841 A 1
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and AR - WEAN20074F12A310 218
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding EENERF o fHhEEINEIREEFERDE
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC BETARBEREHS - R RARENHE
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, HRE - RAEENS - BAHER10% °
the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable for Eit - REBAEF B AT B ZENB
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries R EIFL2008F 1 A1 HEE LKA F 5 KK
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated BB BT -

from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment AARAEBRRIRMTBRE TS ELMEHE
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. Re
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B2
2016 2015
20164 2015%F

US$’000 RMB’000 US$'000 RMB’000

equivalent equivalent

FERXT AR%®TR FET AR®ETFT

£E £

Authorised: JATE :
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.001 each
(2015: 50,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each)
10,000,000,000% & AX EI1E0.001 3£ T B 3 AR
(2015%F : 50,000 B EE1ETH L HEAR) 10,000 50

Issued and fully paid: B 21T RER
100,000 ordinary shares of US$0.001 each
(2015: 100 ordinary shares of US$1 each)
100,000/ &A% EI1E0.001 £ LAY & A%
(2015%F : 100 BREE1E T L BAR) - 1 - 1

5
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26.

146

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year are as follows:

26. Ix 7 (48)

ARBRANFERANDETRAZESHIAT ¢

Number of
ordinary shares Issued
in issue capital
21T 28T
ERRKRHE =N
RMB’000
ARBTT
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
M2015F1H18 + 2015612 H31H KX20165F1H1H 100 1
Sub-division of shares (the “Share Split”) (note)
BRH DI (TR D7) (M) 99,900 -
At 31 December 2016 12016512 H531H 100,000 1

Note:

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on
10 December 2016, each share of the Company of US$1 in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company was sub-divided into 1,000
shares of US$0.001 each, such that the authorised share capital of
the Company became US$50,000 divided into 50,000,000 shares of
US$0.001 each and the issued share capital of the Company became
US$100 divided into 100,000 shares of US$0.001 each.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on
10 December 2016, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from US$50,000 to US$10,000,000 by the creation of a further
9,950,000,000 shares of US$0.001 each.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(i) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the reserve arising pursuant
to the Reorganisation as detailed in note 1 above. The
distributions to the then shareholders were settled through
current account with related parties.

(ii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries with
functional currencies other than RMB.

(iii) Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

27. (#1E

AEERARFEMBEFENFBEREDH
HEVNGEEREEEK -

(i) E/tREE
SUEEBERESAESNERE &
TEHR E XXM o M E R AR S Ve
B9 IR T EREBE S HNEREOX
fif o

(i) ERREFE
P NN B RS AR R E AR B R KB
DNAIMBHRENARBUINNI B
W e B PTG FERETE H 2 o
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. — == )\ —
28.DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 28. HE—XMEA A
2015
20154
Notes RMB’000
B sE AREEF T
Net assets disposed of: & HEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment ¥1% - &5 & & 13 21,180
Long term prepayment & EATE {3018 308
Trade and bills receivables & 5 & W IE K fE I = & 44,077
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TET A « #& K E b FEURFIE 2,757
Due from group companies, net fEIE B QA RIFRIE © F5E 50,482
Cash and cash equivalents 34 MR & S EY 1,627
Pledged deposits & 17 3 19,360
Trade and bills payables & 5 & 58 & B E & (67,698)
Other payables and accruals E b & {5018 & fE =+ & (3,815)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & B8R 1755k (62,714)
5,464
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —X B A B/ Uk 5 11,336
16,800
Satisfied by: X773 ¢
Cash & 16,800
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHNE—FRMBARNBE e RESEEY
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: MAFEOWAT
2015
20154
RMB’000
AREEF T
Cash consideration &R (B 16,800
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HER & MRS EHEY (1,527)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary
FRALE—FRNBRATNEREE KRS EEMRAFE 15,273
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29. DEEMED DISTRIBUTION TO THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the business transfer agreement entered into
between Morris PRC, the Company and certain subsidiaries
now comprising the Group, as part of the Reorganisation, the
furniture business formerly operated by the furniture division
of Morris PRC was transferred to certain subsidiaries now
comprising the Group and the transfer was completed on 31
December 2015 (the “Transfer Completion Date”). The assets
and liabilities of the furniture division of Morris PRC set out below
were not transferred, assigned or novated to the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group as at the Transfer Completion Date
and were treated as a deemed distribution to the Controlling
Shareholders in connection with the Reorganisation:

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

29. 18 F 0] 42 B B SR AF Hi 19 70 K

BERZAPE ARG RANEEBERFET
ETHBRARGI L M¥EBE R (ERE
HE—F0) - LRTRFEA R EARES
BENRAXBERTASERRETS
THEAR - BZEEER2015F12A31
B ([#EZETKBEEH] TXK - RERETKE
H - BAFRBRE IR [ 485 B IR 5 5E
THEBARERE  HEXEETINEERS
& MzEEBERBEWRAREAmME
RARREL B —IED IR

2015

20154

Notes RMB’000

B &E ARBF T

Net assets distributed: B9 R & E/FE

Property, plant and equipment #1% - BiE M & 13 26,558
Prepaid land lease payments & f{ £ it 7 & 18 14 17,329
Long term prepayment & 37814 7 E 23
Inventories & 109,233
Trade and bills receivables & 2 & WK IE & fE W E 4% 45,009
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 B - g K& E b B UL IE 35,773
Due from related parties &% 838 75 18 734,446
Trade and bills payables & 5 F& {71 8 & JE S =% (607,086)
Other payables and accruals E b & {5 38 & FEA+ & F (26,641)
Due to related parties &85 75 FUIA (38,660)
Due to group companies, net JEfTSEE A FIFIA © JF58 (86,896)
314,088

swrsens [
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 30. IR

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RARERR - AREHEE A THABER

financial guarantees:

2016 2015
20164 20154
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T ARBET T
Guarantees given to banks in connection with facilities granted to:
RETUTEFRE M RRITIELMER :
Related party — Morris PRC Bi#77 — A F (a) - 150,000
Third parties =7 (o) - 24,200
- 174,200
Utilised to the extent of the following amounts by:
MATEHEBRMNESEE
Related party — Morris PRC Bii#75 — RAF - 103,324
- 103,324
Notes: MIEE -
(a) Al guarantees provided by the Group to Morris PRC have been () AEERHTEAITENMABHEREER
released in December 2016. 20164F 12 ARk -
(b)  All guarantees provided by the Group to third parties have been b) AEERETFE=ZFHAEERBER
released in January 2016. 2016F1 A% -
The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of the ARREERAERNAABELTEK -
guarantees is not significant. Accordingly, these guarantees were bt ZEERWIARRIHER P ELHEE -
not provided for in the financial statements.
31.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 1. HARARE
Except for the financial guarantees detailed in note 30 above, B b it B SES0RF il 19 B FE Y2 (RO - AR
the Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at RARERT EEAEANRLARAE -

the end of the reporting period.
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eI RRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS - AS LESSEE

The Group leases an office property, showrooms and factory
premises under operating lease arrangements. The leases for
these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1.5 to
10 years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments during under non-cancellable operating leases falling

2. REHELTH — EAEKBEA

AEERBELEHELHHEHERAYE K
BEBE - ZEMENHER-—F¥E+F

THERRER -

HZE20169F12A31H @ ANE BRI AT
SHEMAMAR TR R R KRKIE

due as follows: HEMNKERNOT :
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFTT
Within one year —F X 5,330 1,487
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FZFHF - BIEHEME 3,094 -
8,424 1,487

COMMITMENTS 33. &

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
32 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

B bl sES2rF s AR E AR SN -

SERARERREFIATEARANE :

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Contracted, but not provided for: B 5] #4118 AR B
Buildings ZEY 570 545

RAEKABERAR
2016 £
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BELRZ

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (a) BUBBRREMBOFLOZHI
financial statements, the Group had the following significant AEERFREBBTETATEX
transactions with related parties during the year: R5

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

Morris Trading B8 E 5
Purchases of finished goods & & ik & - 413

Jennifer Convertibles, Inc.
Sales of finished goods (note) $5&E M@ (M) 30,495 31,609

Morris PRC &+

Purchases of inventories i BF & 55,379 -
Purchases of electricity {8 & & 1,717 -
Rental expenses (note) A& X (M) 6,521 -
Agency fee R IZE 5,531 -
The above related parties are companies controlled by the FitiBEE S ARIERIEERIEEIN AT o 32E
Controlling Shareholders. The transactions were conducted X5 ThiREARRAET 405 H B 1% B G5 R E
on terms and conditions mutually agreed between the LT o

relevant parties.

Note: BT
These related party transactions also constitute non-exempt ZEMEAZGINER MBI FELIAZTEED
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of THERREHEBRERS -

the Listing Rules.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Other transaction with related parties:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

In 2015, certain land and buildings with carrying
amounts of RMB10,248,000 and RMB16,581,000,
respectively, were transferred from the Group to
Morris PRC, a company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders. The transfer at carrying amounts was
settled through current account with Morris PRC.

In 2015, certain of the Group’s bills receivable arising
from intra-group sales were novated to non-furniture
division of Morris PRC. Such bills receivable had
aggregate face values of RMB39,400,000 as at 31
December 2015. The related bills receivable matured
in 2016.

In 2015, the Group’s trade receivables from Jennifer
Convertibles, Inc. amounted to RMB76,776,000 were
novated to Morris PRC.

In 2015, certain performance bonds in respect of
import and export guarantee were provided by non-
furniture division of Morris PRC on behalf of the
Group amounted to RMB4,000,000.

On 31 December 2015, the Group has entered
into a trademark transfer agreement with Morris
PRC, pursuant to which certain trademarks were
transferred to the Group at nil consideration.

eI RRME
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4. BERTRS ()

(b)

(i)

(i

(i)

BERERTNWHEMRS

20155 - BREE H 5l B A
R #10,248,0000T & A R ¥
16,581,000t ) & T T3 & &
EYBHAEEERTRAFRH
(—RAZEBRBRZEHHAR]) -
REMESEDEREEAFTH
BT RER P A o

20155 - SEANHEEEN
REBETRUEBEFERR
FREIR)IERIE R - ZERKE
ER2015F12A31E M AREE
A A R #39,400,0007T > B #
FERZE IR E R2016F 58 -

20154 - A& & & WJennifer
Convertibles, Inc.B9& 5B A
R #76,776, 000 E B E R A
FE o

20155 - RE T B A IFEKRA
AR RAREFE L O ER
REMNETERORERBARR
4,000,0007T °

R2015F12H318 » A& H =
RAFTEF L EREERE &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR MR

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

Other than balances with related parties disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
no outstanding balances with related parties as at 31

December 2016. (2015: Nil)

(d) Compensation of key management

personnel of the Group

(c) BEBELNAREBESER

B B 75 R 35 HL 4t 30490 BT 358 BB A L B
T A ER AN - AN &R B 2016512
S1EEMESWEF M RERER
(2015%F : &)

(d) XEBEEEEASNFHMH

2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR¥TTT

Fees #%& 2,120 =

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & ~ 2B R EWFZE 3,907 1,826

Discretionary bonuses BB 1EAT 6,387 845

Pension scheme contributions iE K&t 2 {5 123 13
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

XNTEEEBASNHMEE 12,537 2,684

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 8 to the financial statements.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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35. ZERIE T NEMT A

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FELRMTANRS RN REESS] 0
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2016 20164
Financial assets THREE
Loans and
receivables
ERREWRRIE
RMB’000
AR¥F T
Trade and bills receivables & 5 & Uk 308 I FE U 2= 4% 219,980
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
STAERMRIE - e REMERREN SR EE 67,548
Pledged deposits & & 17 X 220,822
Cash and cash equivalents IR & MR & HEY) 73,647
581,997
Financial liabilities TRAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SR A
FTENERARE
RMB’000
AR®T T
Trade and bills payables & 5 & 78 & B ZiE 542,715
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
RAHMENREREAERNGREBE 39,519
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B R1TfE K 277,183
859,417
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

35. ZBHIE T NEMT A

CATEGORY (Continued) (&)
2015 20154
Financial assets EMEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Bk AT E
FE WK IE TREE BET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT
Available-for-sale investment A it H E1&% & = 26,000 26,000
Trade and bills receivables & 5 JE U FIAE K fE W Z 18 283,812 - 283,812
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
STATEN IR - e REMERFIENEREE 31,933 - 31,933
Due from related parties J&Us #8877 7018 193,197 = 193,197
Pledged deposits & H i 17 96,477 = 96,477
Cash and cash equivalents IR & MR & HEY 33,131 = 33,131
638,550 26,000 664,550
i (==
Financial liabilities LMAR
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LSRR
rENemBEE
RMB’000
ARETTT
Trade and bills payables & 5 F& {5 5018 & T R ik 476,463
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
SFAHMENFIBEREAERNSRAE 9,899
Due to related parties FE{~REE 5 ZUA 95,647
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B iR 1T{& 5K 198,116
780,125
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36. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 36.EBZEE®MEE
*7‘5%1.\ ﬂ:ﬁEWb\mEEngfl’ﬂﬂﬁﬁ

Transferred financial

assets that are not

derecognised in their entirety

(@)

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China to certain
of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to
such suppliers. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks of certain issuing banks after the
endorsement, and accordingly, the Group continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of the endorsed bills
receivable from such issuing banks (the “Endorsed Bills”)
and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent
to the endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights
on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale,
transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third
parties. As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Bills were RMB19,673,000 (2015:
RMB82,888,000).

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into
trade receivable factoring arrangements (the “Factoring
Arrangements”) with recourse and transferred certain trade
receivables to banks. Under the Factoring Arrangements,
the Group was exposed to the default risk of the trade
debtors after the transfer. The aggregate carrying amount
of the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangements that has not been settled and continued to
be recognised by the Group as at 31 December 2016 were
RMB55,111,000 (2015: RMB80,489,000).

R2016F12 8318 » NEE K EHEH
N RITHEMNE TEREESET
ETEER - WEERMZSHER
MESEMNRIE - EFRE ~5E
ERBEBADBMHEAKRKE®R  HPE
BEERAETHITRITNENRERR -
WMAEEFERRZERITRITHE
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36. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 36.EHZEEMEE (&)

1

B

8

(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that

derecognised in their entirety

are

At 31 December 2016, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain banks in order to obtain
additional financing or certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers with carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB119,105,000 (2015: RMB310,089,000).
The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to six months
(2015: one to six months) at 31 December 2016. In accordance
with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders
of the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the
Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”).
The Derecognised Bills were honoured by reputable banks in
the PRC, such as Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of China,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and other reputable
banks rating at AAA by national credit rating agencies. In the
opinion of the directors, these banks have good reputation and
credit quality, and the risk of default of these bills receivable on
maturity is remote, and therefore, the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills since after the transfer the Group’s exposure to the variability
in the amounts of the net cash flows of the transferred asset is
not significant. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated liabilities.
The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their
carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values
of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills
are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
discounting and endorsement has been made evenly throughout
the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings and amounts due from/to related
parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to
the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale investment as at 31
December 2015 has been estimated based on the principal and
the yield rate quoted from the financial institution. The fair value
measurement of the available-for-sale investment was in Level 3.
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37.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

38

160

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and
any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December
2015.

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value measurement
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level
3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2015: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk exposure refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of the Group’s bank loans will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As at 31 December
2016, if interest rates at that date had been 10 basis points
higher with all other variables held constant, profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would have been RMB43,000 (2015:
RMB42,000) higher arising as a result of a decrease in the fair
value of fixed rate bank loans. If interest rates at that date had
been 10 basis points lower with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 would have been
RMB43,000 (2015: RMB42,000) lower arising as a result of an
increase in the fair value of fixed rate bank loans.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which arose
from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant operating units, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no material impact on other components of
the Group’s equity.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, amounts
due from related parties, and other receivables, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

The Group had certain concentrations of credit risks as the
following percentage of trade and bills receivables were due
from the Group’s largest external customer and the Group’s five
largest external customers out of the Group’s total trade and bills
receivables excluding the bills receivable arising from intra-group
sales transactions:
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2016 2015
20164 20154
% %
Due from the Group’s largest external customer
FE U AN 5 Bl B A SRR 22 P R IR 28 8
Due from the Group’s five largest external customers
FEM AR =B B ARSMBE P FIR 79 72

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 16 to the financial statements.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates and based on rates at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by the total equity.
Total equity refers to equity attributable to owners of the parent.
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The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were BELEMT
as follows:

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR¥EFTT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 23) &t 2R 1TE K (FfFE23) 277,183 198,116
Equity attributable to owners of the parent & R BIHEA A EIERE 2 158,764 75,057
Gearing ratio BE B &R 174.6% 264.0%
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

In connection with the Listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, 250,000,000 new ordinary
shares of US$0.001 each of the Company were issued
at a price of HK$1.05 per ordinary share for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$262,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB234,042,000) (the “Global
Offering”). Dealings in the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange commenced on 12 January 2017.

Upon the creation of the Company’s share premium
account as a result of the Global Offering, an amount of
US$749,900 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,185,000)
standing to the credit of the share premium account of
the Company has been capitalised on 12 January 2017 by
applying such sum towards paying up in full at par a total
of 749,900,000 ordinary shares for allotment and issue to
the then existing shareholders (the “Capitalisation Issue”).
Immediately following the completion of the Global Offering
and the Capitalisation Issue, the total outstanding ordinary
shares of the Company was 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares
including the 250,000,000 ordinary shares issued upon the
Global Offering.
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

40. 2" 2 B B B AR O 3=

Information about the statement of financial position of the RIERR - BARBMBARKBENE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AT
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET JE# & & E
Investment in a subsidiary BN —XRH B A R KRE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS g &E&E
Prepayments 81} 518 48 14
Due from subsidiaries F&U B A~ 778 105,000 =
Due from related parties JEUERE H ZIA = 1
Total current assets i EN & E 425 105,048 15
CURRENT LIABILITIES i® & &
Other payables and accruals HAbfEI B K EFHE B 3,994 =
Due to subsidiaries FE{T KB A alFIA 3,318 103
Total current liabilities i E) & BE42%8 7,312 103
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) eV &E (B1E) FE 97,736 (88)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BE#ZE R TB A & 97,737 (87)
Net assets/(liabilities) E&E (& &) FE 97,737 (87)
TOTAL EQUITY/(DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS) #5485 /(B EEAL)
Share capital i&7x 1 1
Reserves f# & 97,736 (88)
Total equity/(total deficiency in assets) 8% /(B EBAL L) 97,737 (87)
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

41

POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

40. A R BRI R (4F)

Note: 5T -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RRFREEEEZNAT
Retained
Exchange earnings/
fluctuation  (Accumulated
reserve losses) Total
BEERMN
ERREHE (RHER) it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 7420151818 = (28) (28)
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year 4 A E1E I 2 E Uz 42%8 (4) (56) (60)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016
2015412831 A %20165181H (4) (84) (88)
Profit for the year &£ X% F| - 98,134 98,134
Other comprehensive income for the year: £ E M2 mEHUE :
Exchange differences on translation of financial statements
BENBERRNERER (310) - (310)
Total comprehensive income for the year F A2 H W 448 (310) 98,134 97,824
At 31 December 2016 A2016F12H31H (314) 98,050 97,736

.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 28 March 2017.
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Four Years Financial Summary

WESpyS S

The consolidated results of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016 and the consolidated assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 are those set out in the audited
financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of
the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2013, 2014 and 2015 has been extracted from the prospectus issued
on 30 December 2016 in connection with the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 12 January 2017.

No financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been published.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

HE2016F12A31BILFE  RRIEBRER A
B ([ARQF]) REWMBAR (FX#HEA[AE
B ) MaREEENURARERR2016F12A31H
M AEENMBBEYEINEEZTBHRERA

AEBH E20134F « 20144 N2015F12H31H
I EFEMNGEEEERBARAREENR20134F -
2014F M2015F12A31HNGEBEERBE
ik B AR ERGD B2017F1 B12B R & BB
AERGBMR AR ER EMATIER A A2016
F12A30H MBI EIR ©

RNEBREE2012912 A31 8 1EF E # £ T 3%
B3R o

AT T EREERRI BRI —FD ©

Year ended 31 December

BZE12831HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013
20164 20154 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT ARBFIT ARBFIT
RESULTS ##&
Revenue WA 941,617 926,471 824,675 984,026
Cost of sales $H& A (671,050) (706,557) (652,051) (787,450)
Gross profit £ 270,567 219,914 172,624 196,576
Profit before tax B3 Ai i A 112,045 103,166 37,804 44,074
Income tax expense FT5FFH X (31,369) (20,098) (13,440) (10,631)
Profit for the year 4 A4 80,676 83,068 24,364 33,543
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2016 2015 2014 2013
20165 20154 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT AREFIT ARBTIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BEERERE
Total assets & E 1,102,005 937,359 1,728,622 2,023,865
Total liabilities £ & & (943,241) (862,302) (1,423,246) (1,742,980)
158,764 75,057 305,376 280,885
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